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Narrative Report

Infroduction

The Council launched its first Community Plan in February 2017 with the vision for 2030 being: “a welcoming, shared and inclusive Fermanagh
and Omagh distict where people and places are healthy, sofe, connected and prosperous and where our oculstanding natural, built and
cultural hertage is cherished and sustainably managed™.

The Council underfook areview of its Corporale Plan 2015-19 and agreed lo updote its Corporate Vision and Values 1o align those set out in
the Community Plan. The Corporate Plan Update 2017-19 aligns the remoining corporate plan actions for 2015-19 fo the community planning
outcomes and also infroduces an cdditional cutcome relaling to the Council itself,

Areview of the Council's progress againsi its Corporale Plan including performance improvement largels will be included in the Counci's
Annual Reporl for 2016-17 which will be published on the Council's websife.

The Counci's financial performance for the yeor ended 315t March 2017 s as set out in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Sialement and it's inancial posifion is s set out in the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Slatement,

These financial statemenis have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounling in the United Kingdom for the
year ended 31st March 2017 {the Code) and the Depariment for Communities Accounts Direclion, Circular LG 10/2017. It is the puipose of this
foreword 1o explain, in an easidy understandable way, Ihe financia! facts in relalion to the Council,

This Sfalement of Accounts explains Fermanagh and Omagh Distict Council's finances during the financial year 2016/17 and its financial
posilion at the end of that year. It foflows approved accounting standards and is necessarily iechnical in parls.

The Nanarlive Report is not parl of the financial slalements but it is prepared on the basis that it is consistent with the financial sialements and
the Namrative Report does not purport to comment on Council policies.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Councils o consider aif their interests ond to prepare a full set of group financial sialements where they have material
inlerests in subsidiaries. ossociales or joinl ventures, Fermanagh and Omagh District Council has an inlerest in Tullyvar Landfil ste which is
accounied for as a joinl veniure,

The Movement in Reserves Stalement

This Stalement, as set oul on page 21. shows the movemenl in the year on Ihe dilfereni reserves held by the Council, analysed into 'usable
reserves’ {i.e. those that can be applied 1o fund expendilure or reduce local laxation) and other reserves. The “Surplus or (deficit) on Ihe
provision of services' line shows the hue economic cost of providing the Council's services, more delai's of which are shown in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemen!. These are different from the statulory omounts required o be charged to the General
Fund Balance for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net increase /Decrease before ransfers 1o stalulory and other reserves' line shows the statutory
General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from stalutory and other reserves underiaken by the Council,

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement

This slafement, as set out on page 22, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance wilh generally accepied
accounting praclices, rather than the amount lo be funded from taxalion. Councils raise faxation to ¢over expenditure in accordance with
regulations: this may be dilferent from the accouniing cost. The taxation posifion is shown in the Movement in Reserves Slatement.



The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheel, as set out on page 23, shows the value os at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of
the Council {assels less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two cotegories. The first calegory
of reserves ore usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may use o provide services, subject to the need to maintcin a prudent level
of reserves and any statutory limilations on their use (for example the Capilal Receipls Reserve that may only be used to fund capilal
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those thot the autheority is not able to use to provide services. This category of
reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gaing and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are soid; and reserves thal hold fiming differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line
'Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under reguiations’.

The Cash Flow Stalement

The Cash Flow Stalement. as set out on page 24, shows the changes in cash and cash equivaients of the Council during the reporting period.
The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and
financing activities. The amount of net cash flows aiising from operating activilies is a key indicator of the exlent 1o which the operations of the
Council are funded by way of jaxaltion and gront income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities
represenl the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended o conlribule to the Council's fulure service
delivery. Cash flows ansing from financing activifies are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital fi.e. borowing) 1o
the Council.

Financiol Report

For the yeaor ended 31 March 2017, the Council increased ils General Fund reserve by £104,642 1o £3.070.219. This increase is after atocations,
deducted from the surplus of the year, of £1,224,424 direc! financing of copital expendilure; £2,025.000 to the Capilal Fund: £1.489.750 o the
Renewal and Repairs Fund and £1,000,000 to other earmarked reserves. The Council's budgel of £34m was suppiemenied by £82k additional
District Rates income. The tolal net operating expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalement is £32.321.897
which includes exceplional income of £1m in respect of the Drummee Landfill sile contract dispule.

Fermanagh and Omagh Distict Council provides a Regionoi Property Cerlificate service on behalf of all Counciis following transter of this
service from the Department for Communities {DIC) on 01 Apiil 2015, Transactions relafing io this service including the Transferred Functions
Grant received from the DIC are nol included in the financial statements bul are disclosed in Note 23,

A summary of the aclual income and expenditure (i.e. excluding technical accounling adjusimenisiior 2014-17 compared with the Estimates
for the year is shown below, Variances have arisen due fo efficiency savings in a number of areas, underspends due to the timing of delivery of
programmes in connection with extemnal funding. addilional income generaled and other reserve provisions made

Actual Estimated Varlance
£ E £

Expenditure 42,171,682 44,307,918 2,136,236
Income from services (12.281.950) {11.098.957} 1.882,993
Net Cost 29.189,732 33.208.961 4.019.229
Add Transfers toffrom Reserves 4.514,750 524,750 3,990,000
MNet Expenditure after Transters 313,704,482 33,733,711 29.22%
Financed by:
Grant:
De-rating Grant {1.642,315) {1.649,639) {7.324)
Transferred Functions Grant {156,714) {154,714) -
Rates Support Grant {1.541.979) {1.541.579) -
Total Grant {3.341.008) (3.348.332} {7,324}
District Rates (30.468.116} {30.385.379} 82737

Surplus/(Deficit) 104.542 : 104,642




Transactions Relating to Retiremenl Benefils

The Council parlicipates in the Northern Ireland Local Govemment Cfficers’ Pension Fund adminisiered by the Nerthem Ireland Loca
Govemmeni Officers’ Superannualion Committee. This is o funded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay confributions into @
fund, calculated ot o level infended to balance the pension's liabilities with investment assets. Full detail included within Note 19.

The Council recognises the cost of relirement benefits in the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when Ihey are eamed by employees,
rather than when the benefits are eventualy paid as pensions.

The charge the Council is required to make against dislict rales is based on the cash payable in the year, and the real cost of relirement
benefils is reversed outin the adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations ne, in the Movement on Reserves
Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Statemeni and included in the
adjustments between occounling basis and funding basis under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Siatement during the year:

201617
£
Curreni service cost 3,802.000
Past service cost/{gain} 57.000
Nel operating expenditure: 3,859,000
nterest cost 3.812,000
Expected return on scheme assets {3.401,000)
Nel chorges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 4,270,000

The loss of £10.08m resulfing from the measurement of the nel defined liabiity is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Slatement.

The Councd also parficipales in the Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme which is an unfunded mut-employer defined benelit
scheme. The Council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assels and liabittfies.

Joint Opetation - Tullyvar Landfill Site

Tuilyvar Joint Commitiee is a londbil site jointly owned and managed by the Council and Mid Ulster District Council on equal ownershiop share
basis. The Council's share of the Tullyvar Commiliee assets. iabities, revenue and expenses were previously accounied for as a Joint Veniure,
Follawng changes in the CIPFA Code of Practice as a result of amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Amangemenis the Joint Committee is now
considered to be a Joint Operation. To ensure compliance with accounting standard iFRS 11 Jaint Amangements the Council's share of Tullyvear
income and expenditure is included within Environmental Services reporting line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and
ihe Council's ighls 1o assets and obligations for liabilities are included in the relevant repariing Ines on the Batance Sheet. The comporative
year figures have been restated. There is no impacl on the General Fund balance or the Councis net worth as @ result of this restatement. A
summary of the Council's share of Tullyvar Landlill sile is detailed in Note 25 and details of 1he Prior Yeor Restatement is inciuded in Note 27,

Provisions

The Statement of Accounts includes provisicns inrespect of londfi closure and oftercare costs. These provisions have been prepared in
accordance with provisions that have been agreed by the Northern ireland Environment Agency (NIEA) as ol 31 March 2014, bul may be
subject 1o delailed scrutiny by NIEA and the final agreed figures may be differeni. The provisions are delailed in Nole 17 1o the financia
statements.

Copital Expenditure

The Council incured gross expenditure of £1.94m for capital purposes during the year. This is summarised as follows:-

2018617
£
Additions 1o Property, Plant & equipment under construction £1,562.605
Vehicles, fistures and fittings, Piant and equipment £400.497
TOTAL £1,943,102

The most significant spends on the capilal progromme in 2016-17 were Enniskillen Castte development £452k; vehicles and equipmeni £400k:
Drummee Landfill Site cell development £348k; West End Community Cenlre £244k; Environmenial Improvement Scheme at Old Market Piace,
Ornagh £145k, Multi Use Games Area (MUGA} at Bellanaleck £121K and an extension to Greenhill Cemetery £96k.

Detals of the financing of coptal expenditure for the year are shown in Nole 11,

Indexaton has been applied o non-cument assets values to update the assel regisfer o lake accouni of the general movement only in
market values of Lond and Properly and Building costs. The surplus on indexation of non-current assels of £2.05m is included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Slalement and the Revaluation Reserve,



Capital Progremme 2017/18

In Febuary 2017, the Council approved the estimates Income & Expenditure for 2017/18. The estimates include a Capital Programme for the
Council of £2.19m to be funded as follows:

Grants £2,747.500
Bomowing £3,167.500
Revenue finoncing £640,000
Reserves £2,634,000
TOTAL £9.189,000

Borrowing Position

The tolal oulstanding on loans at 31 March 2017 is £10.30m. The cost of servicing loans duiing the financial year was £1.76m. The Council
previously acquired assets on hire purchase. The cost of servicing the Council's hire purchase agreements during the year was £2246k and the
balance ouistanding al 31 March 20§17 is £351k.



Stalement of the Councll’s and Chief Ainancial Officer's Responsibiliies for the Statement of Accounts
The Council's Responsibillities
Under Section 1 of the Local Governmeni Finance Act (Northern reland) 201§ a council shall moke arangements for the proper administration

of its financial affairs. A councii shall designate an officer of the council as its chief financial offcer and these arrangements shall be camied out
under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulafion 7 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Marthemn Ireland) 2015 the Council, o o Commitiee, is required
by resolulion, 1o approve the accounts,

These audited accounts were approved by on
The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibllities

Under Reguiakon 102} of the Local Government [Accounts ond Audit) Regulaltions (Norlhern ireland) 2015, the Chiel Financial Officer is
responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in the form directed by the Department for Communities.

The accounts musl give a lrue and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial yeor and the finoncial position s
at the end of the financial year,

n preparnng this Stalement of Accounts. the Chief Financiol officer is required to:
) observe tha Accounts Direclion issued by the Depariment for Communities including complance wilth the Code of Practice on Local

Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom

- follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis, and

. make judgements and eslimales that are reasonable and prudent.
The Chief Fingnciol Officer is also required 1o
. keep proper accounling records thal are up-to-dale, and

) take reasonable steps for the prevention and deteclion of fraud and olher imegularilies.



NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibliity

Fermanagh and Omagh District Council is responsible for ensuing that its business is conducied in accordance with the law and proper
standards. and that public money is safeguarded ond propery accounted for, and used economically, efficiency and effectively,

fermanagh ond Omagh Disiict Council alio has o duly under Local Govemment (Best Value) Act {Northem Ireland) 2002 lo make
arangements for conlinuous improvement in the way in which its funclions are exercised. having regard to o combinalion of economy,
efficiency and effectiveness.

Part 12, section 84, of the Local Govemment Act [NI] 2014 also places a general duly on councils to make orangements fo secure continuous
improvement in the exercise of its functions

In discharging this overall responsibilily, Fermanagh and Omagh District Council is responsible for putfing in place proper orangemenis for the
governance of its affairs, facilitaling the effective exercise of ils functions, which includes arangements for the management of risk.

fermanogh and Omagh District Council has prepared an Annual Govemance Statement which is consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Govemance in Local Govemment: Framework. This statemen! explains how Fermanagh ond Omagh District
Council complies with the code and meets the requirements of Regulafion 4 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regutations
[{Northem Ireland) 2015 in relation lo the publication of a stalement on internal coniroi.

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The govemance fromework comprises the syslems and processes. and culture and values, by which the Council is directed and conirolled
and its aclivities Ihrough which it accounts to, engages with ond leads the communily. It enables Fermanagh and Omagh District Council ta
monitor the achievement of ifs sirategic objectives and lo consider whether those objectives have led lo the delivery of appropriote, cost-
effective services.

The system of intemal control is a significant part of that fromework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot elimingte
all risk of failure to achieve policies. ams and objectives and can, therefore, only provide reasonable ond not absolule assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on on ongoing process designed 1o identify and priciitise the risks 1o the achievement of
Ihe Council's policies, aims and objeclives, to evaluale the likefihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised. and
fo manage them efficiently. effectively and economically.

The govermnance framework has been in ploce af Fermanagh and Omagh Dislrict Council for the year ended 31 March 2017,



The Governance Framework

The key elements of the systems and processes that comprised Fermanogh and Omagh biskict Council's govemance arrangemenis are
detailed below:

1 idenlifying and communicating the Council's vision of ifs' purpose and Infended oulcomes for cifizens and service users.

The 'Fermanagh and Omagh 2030 Community Plan’ is the overarching, long-term strategy for the district. The Council's Comparate
Plan sets out, in Ihe medium term, how fhe Council will conlribute to the achievement of the community planning outcomes and ciso
sels the fromework for development of the annuai Service Delivery and Improvement Plans within the Council.

The Commurily Plan was developed following significant consultation and in its role as lead pariner, in February 2017, ihe Council
agreed the Vision and Quicomes sel out in the Community Pian for the distict. Alongside this, the Council undertook a review of ils
Corporate Pian 2015-19 and agreed 1o updale its Corporale Vision and Values o align with those sel outin the Community Plan,

A Corporate Plan Update 2017-1%, which is available 1o view on the council’s websife {www fermanaghomagh.com) was agreed
and published during The year. This aligns the remaining corporate actions for 2015-19 to the community planning outcomes and also
introduces on additional oulcome relating to the Council itself.

The Community Plan was formally launched te the public in March 2017 and copies have been widely distiibuted. The Corporate
Plan Update 2017-1% is issued to gl consultees on the Council's consuilee dalabase and copies are available to the public at key
Counci facilities. Intemal commurication channels have included staff briefings, corporate communication bullefins, the use of the
staff infranet and carporale induclion briefings for new employees. A 'one page’ corporate plan summary poper has been provided
o all staff.

2 Reviewing the Council's vision and iis implications for the Councll's governance arrangements.

Fermanagh and Omagh Distict Council has reviewed is vision as par of the process lo develop and agree the Community Plan for
Ihe district and has undertaken a significant review of ils Comporate Plan. resulting in the production of a Corporate Plan Update 2017-
1%, which ensures strategic alignment between both key sirolegies

Elecled members receive performance reports setling out progress lowards delivery of the Corporale Plon twice annually with on
Annual Repor! published in September each year.

3 Measuring the quality of services for users through the Citizen Satisfaction Survey, for ensuting they are delivered in accordance with
the Council's objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best use of resources.

During 2014/17, tha Council developed three corporale sirategies, Cuslomer Service Stralegy: Community Engagement &
Involvemeni Sirategy and a Communicafions Sirategy. The sralegies are closely aligned. place significant emphasis on cifizen
involvement in the Council's decision-moking process, communicating with the public and on customer safisfaction with service
delivery. These were subject o public consulialion for equality impoct assessment.

A composile Action Plan has been developed which sets cul lhe corperote objeclives and aclions focussed on ihe delivery of high
quality services for cusiomers to meel Iheir needs and this will be implemented during 2017-18, This work includes:

- undertaking Cilizens Safisfaclion Surveys and communily consultalions and where appropriate:

« setfing corporale cusiomer senvice standards lo be achieved which includes two-way communications channels and

+ ensunng that services are accessible to all.

Performance indicators witl be established o measure the ouicomes from the implementation of these sirategies

In addition, the Councilis taking farword Project Citizen which is a progromme of work which aims 1o develop a counc twide
customer service cullure; develop a progromme of stalf development 1o enable staft o acquire new customer focussed skills o
enhance efficient service delivery lo customers; demonsiraie the achievements of continuous improvement and; where applicatsle,
deploy innovative technology to support cifizen engagement with the Council.

During 2014-17 a number of shorl APSE-developed Cilizens Safisfaction Surveys have been undertaken, The Counci akso hos in place
Comments, Compliments and Complainis policy and procedure, through which customers can provide feedback on their
salisiaction levels with the Council's service delivery. Customers can feedback through email, telephone, letier, face to face. via the
website or facebook. The Leisure Cenires and Arts Cenbres have specific customer solistaction/comments recording processes in
place. The feedback received from all these sources is used lo inform service delivery and impravements,



Defining and documenting the roles and responsibllities of the executive, non-execulive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear
delegation amangements ond protocols for efiective communication.

Fermanagh and Omagh District Council's Conslitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions are made and the
procedures which are followed lo ensure thal these ore efficient, ransparent and accountable to local peoplte. The Council
operotes a committee system, allhough the Councit remains ullimately responsible for the exercise of all functions. Meetings of the
Council and commillees are generally open to the public except where ‘confidential’ or ‘exempl’ mallers. as defined by the Local
Govemment Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, are discussed,

Within the Consfitution, the Scheme of Delegation clearly defines the roles and responsibilities of the Chief Execufive, Direclors and
Heads of Service.

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the standards of behaviour for members and sia,

The Council’s Conslitufion includes the Northem ireland Local Govemment Code of Conduct for Councillors, the Code of Conduct for
Employees and the Ermployee/Councillor Working Relationship Protoco! which sets out the working refationship between Councillors
and Employees and the sleps to be taken fo deal with concerns and seek a resoiution o difficulties that may arise. All Members were
issued with a copy of the Constitution as part of their induction.

The Code of Conduct for Councillors sets out the principles and rules of cenduct which councillors must observe. Councillors have a
personal responsibility to ensure that they are fomilior with, and understand their obligations under the Code.

The Principles are infended to promote the highest possible standards of behaviour for councillors. The Rules are the practical
opplicalion of the principles with Councillors required to cbserve bolh the Rules and Prnciptes. Councillors are required to confirm
that they have read ond will observe Ihe Code of Conduct,

Council meelings are managed in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders, The Lead Legal Services Officer/Council Solicitor
provides advice and guidance lo Members and Officers on the impiementation of the Code of Conduct, Standing Orders and
Planning Protocol when required. A legal representalive atlends the monthly Flanning Commitiee meelings, Council meelings and
other Commitiee meetings in an advisory capacity as required. The Council afso maintaing Registers of inferests which has been
completed by all Members and senior Council Cifficers in accordance with best practice and these are kept under regulor review.

In January 2015 the Council adopted the Code of Conduct for Local Govemment Employees as outlined in Circular LGRIF/O? -
November 2014 and the associoled Local Govemment Employee and Councillor Working Retationship Protocol.

The Code bwilds on, and is in keeping with, the seven principles of public life articulated by the Nolan Committee on Standards in
Public Life and the five further principles of conduct that have been adopted by the Northem Irefand Assembly.

The Code sel out standords of behaviowr expected of Council officers and also deals with The disclosure of information, political
neutrality and potential conflicts of interest. appointmenis and clher employment matters, outside commitments, personal interesis
and equalily issues. The Code also emphasises the importance of separation of roles particulady during procurement and the use of
financial resources and specifically addresses fraud and corruplion, hospilality and gifts, sponsorship and whistieblowing.

Arange of employee awareness fraining has taken place, including Code of Conduct Awareness Training for all siaif in February
2017, and 4 Corporate Induclion Progrommes for new employees - which specifically includes informalion on the Code of Conduct,
A copy of the Code of Conduct for Employees is included in the employee induction pack as well os being provided on the
Employee Intranet,

Reviewing and updaling standing orders. standing financial instructions, o scheme of delegation and supporling procedure
notes/manuals, which clearly define how decisfons are taken and the processes and conirols required to manage risks.

Fermanagh and Omagh District Council's Constilulion, which was approved in April 2015, includes Financial Regulations, Slanding
Orders and the Scheme of Delegation.

Any changes to the Conslitution or Planning Prolocol are approved by the Council and any changes agreed by the Council are
opplied fo the copies disployed on the Council websile and 1o the master copy retained within the Council's Democratic and
Customer Services' function where a change register is maintcined. Members are provided wilh an updaled hard copy onrequest.

The Council's Finoncial Regulations set out the overarching financial responsibilifies of the Council and its staff and provides the
framework within which the Council’s financial affairs are managed. The finoncial Regulations are supporied by a delailed
Accounting Manual which covers all operational areas within the Finance section.

The Council's Corporate Risk register is developed and reviewed by senior managemeni and reporied 1o the Audit Panel. The minules
of the Audit Panel are reported through the Policy and Resources Committee to the Council. Internally, Departmenial Risk Registers
have been developed and these ore reguiarly reviewed ond updaled by Departmental Risk Management Teams and reported
through {o Senior Management Team fo inform the Council's Corporate Risk Register.

As part of the Council's assurance framework, Direclors and Heads of Service are required to assess the adequacy of the risk
management regime within their Direciorales and fo provide assurance slatements which serve to inform the overall govemance
staterment.



Undertoking the core funciions of an Audit Commitiee, as identified In CIPFA’s Audit Commiitees - Proclical Guidance for Local
Authodlies.

Fermanagh and Omagh Distici Council has established on Audit Panel ta support the Chief Execulive in his responsibilities for issues of
govemance, risk management and control and associaled assurance.

The purpose of an Audit Panel is lo provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk manogement framework and the
associated conirol environment, independent scruliny of the Council’s financial and non-financial performance fo the extenf that it
alfects the Council's exposure 1o risk and weakens the conirol environment, and to oversee the financial reporting process alongsiche
the Counci's amangements lo secure confinuous improvement in its functions,

The Audil Panel has 5 members with cross-party representation, appointed for the lerm of fhe Counci, and two non-vofing
independent members, an exlemal quaified accountant with expenence of Local Government Finance and Audil and on exiermnally
recrvited independent member,

The Audit Panel meets four times a year and the Chair of the Audit Panel may convene additional meetings as they deem necessary.
Audit Pane! meelings witl nermally be attended by the Chief Executive, the Director of Corporate Services and Govemance, the
Head of Finance, the Inleral Audilor and a representalive of External Audit, The Audit Panel may ask any other officials of the Council
to attend lo assist il with its discussions on any parficular matter.

The Audit Panel reports formally to the Council's Policy ond Resources Committee.

Ensuring compliance with relevant laws and tegulalions, Internal policies and procedures, and that expenditure Is lawful.

The Council has complied wilh the Local Gavemment Finance Act [N} 2011, the Local Government {Capital Finance and
Accounfing} Regulalions (NI) 2011 and the supporling codes - the Prudential Code and the Treasury Management Code.

The Chief Execulive is. for the purpose of Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act {Norlthern Ireland) 2011, the Chief Financial
Officer of Fermanagh and Omagh Disict Council and is charged with ensuring the lowfuiness and financial prudence of decision-
making; providing advice and guidance and ensuring that expendilure Is lawful, The Council ensured thal professional advice on
matiers that had legal or financial implications is ovaiable and properly considered wilh the legal advisors in attendance ot meelings
{inclucing plonning meelings), if deemed necessary.

Each Director and Head of Service is responsible for ensuing complionce with retevani legisiation, regulations, internal policies and
procedures within their service areq, and provides an assurance stalement o the Chief Execufive in this regard. The Councii's Chief
Execulive has ullimate responsibiity for generally securing complionce within the organisation.

Whistleblowing and for recelving and investigaling complaints from the public.

Fermanagh and Omagh District Counci has a Fraud ond Comuplion Policy and a Whistieblowing Policy both of which were reviewed.,
updated and approved by the Councilin 2016/17.

The Councilis commitied lo camying out business faidy, honeslly and openly and has a zero folerance lowards bribery. The Council
expecls full complionce with the requitements of the Bribery Acl 2010 from Councillars, Employees. Agents, Pariners, Suppliers ond
Groups or Individuals applying for, orin receip! of. grant cid. If is commitied 1o developing. implementing and mainigining effective
procedures and conirols to prevent any occurence of fraud and comuption.

The qim of the Whistieblowing amangemenis is fo act as a detereni fo malpraclice, encourage openness, and promete transparency
and to underpin the Council's approach to risk management.

The Council's Fraud and Comuption Policy and Whistleblowing Policy are provided to ol new employees as part of the induction
process. Fraud awareness lraining has been scheduled for 2017-18.

Fermonagh and Omagh District Council is commitied to dealing with a complaints faily and impartially. The Complaints procedure is
available in elecironic format via the Council website, or is available in hard copy on request. An intemal audil review of Cusiomer
Service {Complaints and Feedbock) was completed duiing the year and work on the recommendations is ongoing.
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10 Identilying the development needs of Members ond senior officers in relation fo thelr skrategic roles, supporfed by opptopriate
training.

tlected Members are informed of the mandatory training they are required to undertake in order 1o fulil their role as Councillors as
part of the induclion process. This includes the Code of Conduct for Councillors, Equality training and use of MinutePad for accessing
documentation for Council and Commitlee meetings.

Additionally, Members are informed of olher discretionary training they can avail of, which includes Presentation Skills, Chairing of
Meelings elc. which they can voluntarily undertoke. Iff Members idenlify any specific individua! fraining needs they wish to address
these are noled and arangement made through the Council's Democratic Services' function.

Members attend a significant number of Informal Meelings with olher statutory, veluniary and community organisalions which helps
to inform Members of regional and/or local issues coupied with best praciice visits as required, Members are nominated fo allend o
range of conferences end seminars which all add to their learning and development and enhance their ability to more effectively
undertake their role as Councillors.

The Council hos agreed o parlicipate in the Elecled Members Development Charter and to support this work. it is proposed in the
forthcoming year to underiake further siruciured assessment of Members' Leaming and Development Needs both om a comorate
and individual penpective.

The Council opproved a new Employee Leaming and Development Pokcy in May 2014, The policy sets oul the Council's
commilment lo the development and training of employees and oullines the range of suppor availoble 1o employees lo support the
delivery of the Council’s aims and objectives os outlined in the Comporate Plan. The Leaming and Development policy is intrinsically
linked 1o the Council's performance management cycle and leaming and development needs are identified ot Ihe performance
oppraisal stage.

The Council also has a Corporate Leaming & Development Plan (2014-18) which identifies the corporate leaming and development
needs of employees ond the proposals to address these.

1" Establishing clear channels of communication with all secfions of the community and other stokeholders, ensuring accountability and
encouraging open consuliation.

Council and Committee meelings are open fo the public and are recorded. The agendas and associated papers. audio recordings
and minutes of the meetings are available en the Council's website www.fermanaghomagh.com.

The Council's corporate strategies in the areas of Cuslomer Service. Community Engagement & Involvement Strategy ond
Communicalions place significant emphas’s on cilizen involvernent in the Council's decision-making process. communicaling with the
public and on customer satisfaction with service delivery. These were subject to pubic consuliation for equaily impact assessment,

The Local Government Act [NI) 2014 provides the Council with a general power of competence enabling il o lake any aclion it considered
appropriate provided the action was not prohibiled by any other legislation, Councils have been provided with the ability to actin their own
interesls and to develop innovalive approaches 1o addressing issues in their district.
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Review of Effectiveness

Fermanagh and Omagh Disfric! Counci has responsibility for conducting, of least cnnualy, o review of the effecliveness of ils governance
framework including the systemn of internal confrol. As oulined earlier. the Councll. during the year ha: token steps o strengthen its
govemance processes. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the senior managers within Fermanagh and Omagh Disict
Council who have responsibility for the development and mainlenance of the govemance environment, the Head of Intemal Audit's Annual
Report ond also by any relevani comments made by the extemal cuditors.

inlemal Audit is responsible for moniloring the quality and effectiveness of systems of internal control. During 2016/17, Internal Audit assignments
were caried aul in accordance with the Annual Intemal Audit Plan agreed by the Audit Panel, Any weaknesses idenfified in infernal coniro
procedures were considered by senior management and reported to the Audit Panel wilh ocfions agreed lo sirengihen the infemal control
environment. All internal audit reports included an overall assurance on the guaity and effectiveness of intemal confrol within the areas
audiled,

Intermal Audil, on the basis of the systems reviewed and reperted on during the year has consdered that the overail confrol environment within
the Council is of a good standard and should be categorised as Salisfactory.

The assurance framework requires Diteciors and Heads of Service to consider annually the adequacy of risk monagement arangements,
infernal controls and wider govemance issues within their service areas. it also provides information on the level of complionce with the various
elements of the Council's Governance Framework, The Heads of Services and Directors are required o monitor, and keep under review, the
operation of infernal controls, within their area, and fo implement changes thal are deemed necessary.

The Audit Panel provides an independent assurance report to the Council on the adequacy of the Council's fisk management framework and
associated conlrol environment. It also provides an independent scrutiny of the Council’s Financial and non-financiol performance to the
extent that it exposes it o risk and weakens the confrol environment. The Audil Panel met four limes during 2016717 and salisfaclorily
discharged its programme of work.

Role of Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Execufive is, for Ihe purpose of Seclion 1 of he Local Government Finance Act (Northem Ireland) 2011, the Chief Financial Officer of
Fermanagh and Omagh Dislrict Council and is responsible for the proper adminiskration of Ihe Council's financial alfcirs. The Council's financial
management arangements conlom fo the govemance requirements of ihe CIPFA Sialement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officerin
Local Govemment {2010} as set oul in Ihe Appicalion Note 1o Delivering Good Govemance in Local Govemmaent. A Framework.

Significant Goverhance Issues

The following sgnificant Govemance lssues have been idenlified oz presenting significant rsk to the Council:

The Brexit decision creales considerable unceriainties and risks which may affect a number of different aspects of the Council’s business, An
initial assessment indicates thal these may include changes to legislation influencing Council aclivilies: irmpaci on funding sources supporting
programme and project delivery: issues related fo the movemenl of people around the border which may affect staffing and district visitors:
olher cross border working amangemenis. The level of uncertainty in respect of these changes is an ongoing tisk so the Counci will aclively
engoage in relevant forums in order to monitor and report on developments on a fimely basis to inform Counci planning and decision making.

The Councilis also subject to financial risks regarding the adequacy of ils budgets in the context of the continuing unceriainty about Centrol
Govemnment budgets that impaci on Local Government. The Council will monitor and assess the impact of these Ihrough exisling financial
management and budgetary planning processes.

We propose, over the coming year, fo consider what further steps can be taken to address the above matiers and to further enhance our
govemance arangements. We will continue to monilor these fisks and lake appropriale remedial actions and will report os part of our next
annudl review.

Signed %1 bate 2(0 &Ser.{-@“w 2013

ﬂ Chief Financlal Qfficer .
Crea -
Signed O{J,l'l’gl-lor Anng Mcﬁeﬁﬁgﬁargl Date ZP &10+&‘W 2_Q|:}

On behalf of the Policy ond Resources Commitiee of Fermanagh and Omagh District Council.
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NORTHERN IRELAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT BODIES'

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

INTRODUCTION

The Local Government [Accounts and Audil) Regulotions {Northem ireland) 2015 require larger local govemment bodies to prepare o
remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts,

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS

COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by counciis ta councillors and commitiee members under Port 3 of the Local Gavernment Finance Acl [Northem

Ireland) 2011 and The Lecal Government {(Payments fo Councillors) Regulations [Northemn Iretand) 2012, which came inlo operation on | Apil
202

Following a review of allowances, carmied oul by an independent Councillors' Allowances Remuneration Panel, which was appointed in May
2013, the then Minister of the Environment advised the Norlhem ireland Assembly in o wiitten statement of the new levels of allowances
applicaoble for councillors from 1 Apnit 2015,

A consolidated document on Guidance and determinafions on Councillors® Allowances opplicable from | April 2017 were issued by the
Department for Communilies on January 2017 . The determinations and rales have been updaled in LG 0372017 . Delails of the allowances
paid to individual councillors are published on council websites.

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councilors were elected 1o the 11 new councils for a four year term, Fermanagh & Omagh
District Council had 40 councillors In 2016/17.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Councilis delermined by the Council in ine with ihat determined by the National Joint

Council {NJC) for Local Govemment Servicas. Senior staff are those stalf who are members of the Execulive Management Team/Senior
Management Teom.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Govemment Steff Commissions' Code of Procedures on
Recnitment and Selection, which requires appointment lo be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competition,

Unless olherwise staled below, the ofiicials covered by this report hold appoeintments which are open-ended
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The fotal amount paid o Councillors by way of allowances. under Part 3 of the Locol Governmen! Fnance Acl {Northem reland) 2011 and the
Local Govemment [Payments to Councillors) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances pald to councillors {audited informafion)

Allowance

2015

17

2015/

14

Total Allowances

£

Number of Councillors
receiving the Allowance

Total Allowances

£

Number of Counclllors
receiving the Allowance

Basic Allowance 59,403 42 567.998 40
|Special Responsibilily 25,162 18 24,840 14]
Chairperson/Deputy Mayor 10,000 2 10,000 ]
Vice Chairperson/ Depuly 5.000 2 5.000 1
Mmileage Allowance 74.270 35 75.338 36
PCSP Altendonce Allowance 6,960 i 5,340 15
Subsistence 1,445 16 1,090 19|
Courses/ Conferences Visits 15,142 4,288

Dependents Carers 431 ] -

lﬁml. ALLOWANCES 707.833 495,894

Delails of the allowances paid fo individual councilors in 2014/17 are pubiished on the council website al www_fermanaghomagh.com/your-

council/councillors-expenses,

The above allowances do not inciude Employer Cosls - these are shown in Note 6

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES (audited information)

The remuneralion of senior employeas covers the Senior Management Team, The following fable provides details of the remuneration paid to

senior employees in 2016/17:

Officers 201817 201516
Salary {Full year Bonus Benefits in Tolol Salary {full year Bonus Benefits in Total
equivalent In Payments |kind {to nearest wquivolent in Paymenls kind (e
brackels where £100} brackets whee nearast £100)
applicable} applicable)
£'000 £000
£'000 £'000
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Brendan Hegarly 106,000 - - 106.000 108.000 - - 108.000
Alison McCullagh 81,000 ~ u 81.000 78,000 - - 78,000
Robert Gibson 81,000 - - 81.000 78.000 - - 78.000
Kevin O'Gara 81,000 - - 81,000 78.000 - - 78,000
Joan McCaftirey (lefl 61,000 - - 41,000 78,000 - - 78,000
31/12/16) {81,000) (81,000}
Celine McCartan 12.000 (78,000} - - 12,000 0 - - 0
{Appointed 07/02/17) {78,000}
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Councils are required t¢ disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Senior Monagement Teom and
the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Senior Management Team in the financial year 2016/17 was £100k - £110k. This
woi 5 fimes the median remuneralion of the workforce, which was £20,400.

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Senior Manogement Team and the median remuneration of
the Councils workforce (audited information)

201617 2015/16
|Salary Band of Highest Paid member of the Executive £100- £110k £100-£110k
Median Tolal Remuneration £20,400 £20.000
Ralio 05:01 05:01

In 2016/17. no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Senior Mancgement Team.

Tolal remuneralion includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Solary
“salary" includes gross salary, overlime, and any gralia paymenits.

Bonus Fayments
Bonus payments are based on performance levels aftained and are made as parl of the appraisal process. Bonuses relate to the
performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. There were no bonuses paid in 2014417,

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefils provided by the empioyer and ireated by HM Revenue and Customs as a laxable
emolument.

Exit Packages for staff
The number of exil packages provided to all staff by the Council during 2014/17. together with lotat cost per band and tolal cost of the
compulsory and cther redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages In 2016/17 {audiled Information)

015717 2015716
Number of Number ol | Tolol Number of | Tolal Cost of Number ol Number of Tolol Total Cost of
Coempulsory Other Exlt Packoges in|Packages In| Compulsory Othes Number ol | Paockages in
Redundancies depar each Cost Band | each Cost | Redundancles departures Exlt each Cos}
Severance Package Cost agreed Band agreed Packages Band
Band £'000 in ecch £000
Cos! Band

£0 - £20,000 4 4 25.181
£20,001 - £40,000 1 [ 36.942
£40,001 - £60,000 4 4 203.518
£60.001 - £80,000 [} 4 281,567
£80.001 - £100,000 | ] 91,938 | ] 87.8%8
£100.001 - £150,000 5 5 419.823
£150,001 - £200.000 2 2 340.943
Tolal 0 1 1 91.938 0 21 Fil 1,595872
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Pension Benefits

The Local Govemnment Pension Scheme [Norhem Ireland) {lhe Scheme) which is o funded defined benefit pension scheme, which provides
relirement benefils for council employees on a “career average revalued earmings” basis from 1 April 2015, Prior to that date benefils were buitt
up on a “final salary” basis.

From | April 2015, @ member builds up relirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year. Pension benefits in relafion to
membership belween | April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were buill up at the rate of 1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership. There
is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of membership affer 31 March 2009, Pension benefits in relalion to any membership before 1
Apri 2009 were built up of the rate of 1/801h {pension) and 3/80ths [lax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each yeaor of membership up to
31 March 2009. Al refirement, members may give up some pension for addilional lump sum, subject to HM Revenue ond Cusloms {HMRC)
limits. The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of pension given up.

Councitors have been able 1o join the Scheme since May 201 1. The Scheme applicalion is modified to reflect the foct that councillors hold an
elecied office. Councillor members have alwoys accrued pension on o career average basis, Prior 1o 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a
rate of 1/60lh ond thereafter ot a rate of 1/4%th.

The Scheme is funded by coniribufions made by both employees/counciliors and employers. Prior fo 1 Aprl 2009, @ member's confibulion
rales were fixed al 6% of their pensionable remuneration {except for those wha were enfitied to contribule 1o the Scheme at 5% before 1
February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment). Tiered member confribulion rales, determined by the whele-time equivalent
rate of pay. were infroduced frem | April 2009. From | April 2015, the member conribution rales are delermined on ihe actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for fiered coninbution rates are revised by the Depaoriment for Commun ties in April each year in accordance wilh the
increase applied to a pension in payment, The bands, effeclive from 1 April 2016, wete as foliows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates

Band Range Employee Conhribution Rate
1 E0-£14,000 5.50%
2 £14,001 - £21,300 5.80%
3 £21,301 - £35.600 6.50%
4 £35.601 - £43.000 4.80%
5 £43,001 - £85,000 8.50%
[ More than £85,000 10.50%

Employers' contribution rales are delermined by the fund's acluary every three years at the tiennial valuation. The 2013 tiennial valuation was
underlaken as ot 31 March 2013 and an employer conlibulion rate of 20% for those employers whose parficipation in the Scheme is deemed
1o be indefinite has been set for the following three years, effeciive from 1 April 2014;

Table &: Employer Conlribulion Roles

Year Employer Conhribution Rale
1 April 2014 - 31 Morch 2015 20%
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 20%
1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017 20%
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The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations [Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local Government Pension
Scheme (Amendment ond Transitional Provisions) Regulations {Northem lreland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets of regutalions are

effective from 1 April 2015.

Counciltors have been able io join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefils thus for. However, the in-
year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2016/17 was £108,397.

The value of pension benefits of fhe most senior management of the Council accrued during The year was as loflows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior stafl in 2016/17 {oudited information)

Officers Accrued Pension at pension | Real Increase in pension CETV al CETV af Real increase in CETV
oge as ot 31/3/17 ond related lump sum at 3/3N7 31731
pension age

Brendan Hegarty 40,566 1.545 685,824 443,993 27.040
Afison McCullogh 21.676 3,061 272,391 245,166 17,500
Robert Gibson _28.5%3 2,988 594,395 565,090 18,781
Kevin O'Gorg 33.12% 3.588 703.681 672,566 17,517
Joon McCaffrey 37,799 2,707 775,409 724,904 45,043
Celine McCarian * 23,691 23,691 2,310 - 1.323

*Joined Pension Scheme 07/02/2017

The Cash Equivalent Transier Value (CETV)
This is the acluarially ossessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by o member at g parlicular point in time. The
benefils valued are Ihe member's accrued benefils and any conlingent spouse's pension payable from the scheme. It is a payment made by
a pension scheme or amangement to secure pension benefits in another pension scheme or arangemeni when the member leaves g scheme
and chooses 1o ransfer the pension benefils they have accrued in their tormer scheme, The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that
the individual has accrued as a consequence of their lotal membership of the pension scheme, nol just their service in a senior copacily to
which disclosure appilies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) {Amendment)
Regulations ond do not lake account of any actual or potential reduction to benefils resulling from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due
when pension benefits are Iaken,

The real increase in the value of the CETV
This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the emplover. It okes account of the increase in accrued pension due 1o inflation,

contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits Iransfened from another pension scheme or arangement} and uses
common market valuotion factors for the siart and end of the period.



Certificate of the Chiel Financial Officer

| cerlify that:

{a}  the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 3ist March 2017 on pages 21 o 84 has been prepored in the form direcled by the
Depariment for Communites and under the accouniing policies set out on pages 25 1o 47.

(b} in my opinian the Stalement of Accounts gives a frue and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial
yeor and the finoncial position as af the end of the finoncia! year ending 315t March 2017,

Chief Financlal Officer
vate 7 {n &F{-@\w 20

Councll Approval of Statement of Accounts

These accounls were approved by resolution of the Council/Commiltee on

vt (o o (g

pate ) fa \S({F,‘TQMW X3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FERMANAGH AND OMAGH DISTRICT COUNCIL

| have audited the financial statements of Fermanagh and Omagh District Council for the year ended 31 March
2017 under the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash
Flow Statement and the related notes. The financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out within them. | have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described
in that report as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Members of Fermanagh and Omagh District Council in accordance with the
Local Government {(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement of
Responsibilities.

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial
position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with the Local Government {Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. |
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland). Those standards
require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Fermanagh and Omagh District Council’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the Fermanagh and
Omagh District Council; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition | read all the
financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based
on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If |
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the implications for my
report.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:
e the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016-17
, of the financial position of Fermanagh and Omagh District Council as at 31 March 2017 and its
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and
¢ the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland} 2015 and the Department for Communities
directions issued thereunder.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion:
¢ the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
Department for Communities directions made under the Local Government {Accounts and Audit)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

¢ the information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 is consistent
with the financial statements.



Matters on which | report by exception
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:

* in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2016-17 ;

* does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for Communities:
*  is misleading or inconsistent with other information | am aware of from my audit; or
o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or

o Ihave not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

¢ lissue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland)
Order 2005; or

* | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

* | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local Government
{Northern Ireland) Qrder 2005,

Certificate

I certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Fermanagh and Omagh District Council in accordance
with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland} Order 2005 and the Local Government
Code of Audit Practice.

éi-f‘“ x\w

Louise Mason

Local Government Auditor
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street
BELFAST

BT7 1EU

28 September 2017



Fermanagh and Omagh District Councli

Movement In Reserves Stalement lor the year ended 31 March 2017

Giher Fund

Generol Fund:  Bolances and
Summory 'Reserves

£ £

Balance os at 01 Aprll 2055 *

2847074 6,278,342
Movement In reserves

duting the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the

provision of services A4 E

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure

Capital

Recelpls Tolol Usable Totol Unusabie Total Councl,

Reserve Resarves Resarves Reserves
£ mail] il s £ £l

93,476 754

84.201,433

132,115 9.277.531

- 4,092,741 4,092,741

9.953.585 9.953.585

Total Comprehensive
Income ond Expendiure
aAdjustments between
occounling basls &
funding under regulations
Net increase belore
transfers te Statutery and

Other Reserves
Transfers 1o / flom

Slaldory and Other
Rrsarvas

Increose/ Decrease In
year

4,092,741 -

{1.053.247) [2.199.461)

3,029,500 {2.199.481)

12.941.000) 2,941,000

78,500 741,537

- 4,092,741 9,953,585 14,046,324

33,425 [3.219.277) 2.219.277

33.425 873,464 13,172,862 14,044,324

33,425 B73.464 13,172,862 14,048,326

F7.374.175 107,525,250

Balance as at 31 March 2014 ** 2. 945,574 7.019.881
Movemant in reserves

during the yaar

Surplusf [Deficil) on the

. 2919341 -
provision of services

Other Comprehensive
Income and Expend ture

10,150,975

- 2,919,381 2919,281

[7.923.7568) [7.923.756)

Total Comprehensive
Income ond Expendture
Adjustiments beiween
gccounting basis &
lunding under regulations
Nel Increase belore
iransfers to Stalutory and
Other Reserves

Transfers 1o [ om
Slatulary and Other
Reserves

Incraase In yaar

2,919.381 -

1,978,492 510,061

4,898,073 510,041

{4.793,431) 4.793,431

104,642 5,303,492

. 2,919,381 (7,923,758} {5.004,375}

39.995 2.528.748 [2.528.748)

39,995 5,448,129 {10,452,504) {5,004,375)

39,995 5,448,129 {10.452,504) {5.004,375)

B4.F21.7%1 102.520.215

Balance as at 31 March 2017

J.070.214 12333373

* Botance aller Local Government Reform Transfer
** Resialed - see Note 27 for details

15,599,124
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Fermanagh and Omagh Disirict Councll

Comprahensive Income and Expendilure Statement lor the yeor ended 31 March 2017

2015/16 (Restated)
B o] - T ‘Net GBS T Jy |

= o h gx‘piﬁdnun Gross .l!u:omo Expenditure Expendiiore Groas Income  Net Expenditure

Service Expenditure Noles £ S £ fror o Lot et SR S e [ A

;:i‘;::;’“d Bt 15,153,588 [1466.462)  11,687.526 13,724,654 3.690,198) 10,034,456

Envitonmental Services 2 17,776,804 [3731.578)  14.045.226 17,065,623 (2,667.083) 14,398,540

Gl I 2 7,132,443 3,699,200} 3.433.443 6,923,242 {3,158,23%) 3765003

Devetopment Services

;’;?:‘I:::" andfeansport =g 583,105 {1.022719} (439.614) 473533 {909.334) {435.801)

LGN LR L 2 2911,342 {22.808) 2,888,534 2,663,485 9.881] 2 653804

Managemeni

Other Sarvices 2 939,447 (654.932) 2B4.515 2,093,547 1564,158) 1,529,389

e ldln s 49477329 (12.597.499)  31,899.430 42,944,284 {10.998.893) 31,745 371

Centinuing Operallons

Other Opetaling

e 7 {24.675] 124.675| {5.591) (5.591)

Rncncing and inssiment S8y LOZBALN {581.669) 146942 1,192,385 616.552) 575833

income and Expendifure

Nei Operating Expenditure 45,525,940 {13.204,043) 32311877 44,134 559 {11,621,038) 32,515.633

Taxation and Non-Specific .
Granl Income 9 [35.241.278)  (35241,278) - [35.408.374) {36.408,374)
Surplus/{Celiclt) on the
Provislon of Services

45,525,940 [4B,445321}) 2,919,381 dd, 134,667 {48.22%.410) 4072741

Sutplus/|Delicit] on
revalualion of nen-curtent 10 2. 182,581 5002239
assels

Remeasurements of the

Net Defined Benefit % (10,086,317} 4 881,344
Liability {Asset)

Other Comprahensive income and Expenditute {7.923,7548) 9.953,585

Tetal Comprehensive Income and Expendiure (5.004,375) 14.046,326



Fermanagh and Omagh Distrlcl Ceuncil
Balance Sheet as ot 31 March 2017

3Tst Maich 2018 15t April 2015

A,
Molg 3134 ulch 2017 (Restated) {Raslated)
T R P S T =T BT e S SIS € WO
Fixed Assels 10 122,834,885 123,571,841 115.440,356
Long Term Deblors 14 1.076.122 1,280,064 1,343,199
LONG TERM ASSETS 123,213,008 124,841,905 114, 783.055
Inventorles 13 508,214 401,954 452,768
Short Term Debtors 14 6.873,508 5,296,592 11,739.966
Caosh and Cash Equivalents 21 18,004,794 14,659,142 9.309.874
Assels Held for Sale i0 328 35.249 61,750

CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Overdraft 21 175 175 450
Shart Term Bomowing 15 VA& T4 1,433,294 1,327,232
Short Term Creditors 16 6,498,858 6535965 8,684,649
Provislons 17 131,937 50.000 125,807
CURRENT LIABILITIES A.0%8 094 8.012,434 10,140,158
Provisions 17 4,439,151 4,528,299 4,442,859
Long Term Bomowing 15 9.179.682 10,295,301 11,471,221
Other Long Term Llabilities 19 25,114,000 14,874,538 18,612,713

LCNG TERM LIABILITIES 38.732,833 29,700,138 34,728,793

NET ASSETS 102,520,915 107,525,290 23 478,964

USABLE RESERVES

Capilal Receipls Reserve 22 205,535 145,540 132,115
Capitol Grants Unapplied Accouni 22 1.164,342 419,777 1,038,942
Copitol fund 22 3.071.071 1,139,475 604,135
Renewal and Repairs Fund 22 3,443,334 1,940,789 1,844,092
Other Balances and Reserves 22 4.642.6056 3,519,840 2789173
Genetal Fund 22 3.070.214 2,965,574 2,867,074

15,559,134

UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account 23 87,903,117 90,299,044 84,984,728
Revalualion Reserve 23 24,328,973 21,274,080 17,192,334
Pansions Resetve 23 {25.114,000} 13,970,000} (17,552,950}
Capital Receipts Delerred Account 23 491,461 517.803 545,557
Accumulated Absences Account 23 {762,491} [685,084) {553.400)
Provisions Discounl Rate Reserve 23 74,731 {63,548) {414,834}

86,921,771 ¥ 84,201,433

NET WORTH 102,520,715 107.525.290 ¥3.478.944
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Fermonagh and Omagh District Council
Cash Flow Statemend at 31 March 2017

te 2014/17:015/16 {Resiated))

[Pl i . ] T T o ST A = L+ e ey i st
Nel Surplus/{Deficil] on the provision ol services 2.919.38] 4,092,741
Adjustment for non-cash movements 5,095.582 9,354,850

Ad]ust for ilems included In the net surplus or deficit on the
provision of services thal are invesfing and financing activities

[1.418,259) {3.425,776}

Nei cash llows from operafing actlvilies &, 594,704 ¥BA23.793
Cash flows from Invesiing Activilies 21 [1.061.963) {3.103,108}
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities 21 [2.189.109) (1,371,124}

Nel Increase or decredse In cash and cash equivaolants 3,345 832 5,345 551

Cash and cash equivalenis at the beginning of the reporiing period 14,458,787 9,309,424

Cuash and cash equlvalents ot the end of the reporing period 18,004,619 14,650,987



Fermanagh and Omagh District Council
Notes to the Financial Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's fransactions for the 20148/17
financial year ond its position at the year-end of 31 March 2017. The Council is required
to prepare an annuai Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Department for
Communities in accordance with regulations 3 {7) and (8) in the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance with proper
daccounting practices,

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2016/17 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17
(SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporling Standards [IFRS). The
accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounis is principaily historical
cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and
financial insiruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/17 also
requires disclosure in respect of:

Summoary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure

reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction wilt flow to the
Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed - where there is a gap
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are caried as
inventories on the Balance Sheet,

- Expenses in relation to services received {including services provided by employees)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when
payments are made.,

- Inferest payable on borrowings and receivable on investmentis is accounted for on the
basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial insirument rather than the
cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.
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- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debior or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Baiance
Sheet. Where it is doubtful thai debts will be sefiled, the balance of debtors is written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penally on nofice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments
that mature in no more than 365 days from the date of acquisition and thai are readily
convertible fo known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value, In the
Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash
management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has token place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurence or otherwise of
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assels
ore not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it
is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service potential.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligalion whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurence or
otherwise of uncertain future evenis nol wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made bul either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Confingent liabilities are not
recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Employee Benefits

Shor-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-
end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick
leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.q. cars) for current employees, ond are
recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service {o the Council.
An accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not
jaken belore the year-end and which employees can carry forward into the next
financial year.
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Terminatlion benefits

Termination benefits are omounts payable as a resuli of a decision by the Council {o
terminale an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer's
decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis 1o Non
Distributed Costs included within 'Other Services' line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of:

a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or

b} when the related restructuring cosis are incurred.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, stalutory provisions
require the General Fund balonce to be charged with the amount payable by the
Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated
according to the relevant accounling stondards. In the Movement in Reserves
Slatement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid 1o the pension fund and pensioners and any such
omounts payable but unpaid ai the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government
Officers' Pension Fund administered by ihe Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’
Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides defined benefils o members
(retirement lump sums and pensions}, earned as employees worked for the Council.
Council employees who fransferred from Central Government on 1st April 2015 as a result
of Local Government reform, are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service
Pension Scheme Northern Ireland (PCSPS {NI}).

The Northern Irelond Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund is accounted for as a
defined benefits scheme.

The liobkilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using
the projected unii melhod -i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made
in relation to relirement benefits earned o date by employees, based on assumplions
about mortality rates, employee turnover raotes, etc, and projections of projecied
earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value al curent prices, using a discount rate based on
the rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and currency to
the Council's Fund liabilities determined using the constituents of the iBoxx Sterling
Corporate Index of AA rate corporate bonds.
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The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund atiributable
to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

quoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities - professional estimate
property — market value

unitised securiiies - current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

within the Cost of Services

Current Service Cost — the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
(liabilities) resulting from employee service in the curent period.

Past Service Cost — (where applicable) the change in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulling from a plan
amendment (the introduction or withdrawl of, or changes to. o defined benefit plan) or
a curtailment (o significant reduction in the number of employees covered by the plan).

Any Gains or Losses on Setilement - (where applicable) arising where a council enters
into a transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all
of the benetfits provided under a defined benefit plan.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefil Liability (Asset} - the change in the net defined
benefit liability {asset) that arises from the passage of time,

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assetls — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Inierest on the Net
Defined Benefit Liability [Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other income
derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the
plan assets, lesstany costs of managing plan assets, andiony tax payable by the plan
itself other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the present
value of the defined benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulling from: a) experience adjustments (the effects of differences between
the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects
of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling - (where applicable) excluding amounts
included in the Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset).

28



Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Parlicipants - the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due
fo payments into the scheme by employees {where increased coniribution increases
pension due to the employee in the future).

Coniributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assels due to payments into the
scheme by the emplovyer.

In relation to refirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance
to be charged with the omount payable by the Council to the pension fund or direcily
to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant
accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the nofional debits and credits for
retirement benefits and replace them with debiis for the cash paid to the pension fund
and pensioners and any such amounis payable but unpaid at the year-end. The
negalive balonce that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial
impact to the General Fund of being required to account for refirement benefits on the
basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary owards of retirement
benefits in the evenl of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of
an award o any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the
award and accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the Northern
Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund.

Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme Northern lreland (PCSPS (NI))

Council employees who transferred from Central Government on 1st April 2015 as ¢ result
of Local Government reform, are covered by the provisions of the Principal Civil Service
Pension Scheme Northern lreland (PCSPS (N1)). The defined benefit schemes are
unfunded and are non-contribulory except in respect of dependants' benefits. The
department recognises the expected cost of these elements on a systematic and
rational basis over the pericd during which it benefits from employees' services by
payment to the PCSPS (NI) of amounts calculated on an accruing basis. Liability for
payment of future benefits is a charge on the PCSPS (NI}, In respect of the defined
contribution schemes, the department recognises the contributions payable for the year.
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Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Evenis after the balance sheet dale are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting pericd and the date when
the Statement of Accounis is authorised for issue. Two types of evenis can be identified:

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed ot the end of the reporting
period - the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

b. those that are indicalive of conditions thai arose after the repeorting period - the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted 1o reflect such events, but where a calegory of
events would have a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and their estimated financial effect.

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they are
authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually
the daote the Local Govemmeni Auditor issues his certificate and opinion. Where
material adjustmenis are made in this period they will be disclosed.

Events faking place after the dale of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Siatement of Accounts,

Exceptional items

when ilems of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed
separalely, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an
understanding of the Council's financial performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of o change in accounting policies or to
comect a material emor. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e., in the curent and future years affected by the change and do not
give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect
of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or
financial performance. Where a change is made, il is applied retrospectively by
adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new
policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are comected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.



Financial Insiruments

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be classified into just one class
ot financial liability ond two classes of financial assets:

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Loans and Receivables
Available for Sale

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a
party 1o the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at
fair value and are carmried at their amertised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and
Invesiment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for inlerest payable are based on the carying amount of the liability,
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exaclly discounts estimaied future cash paymenis over the life of the
insfrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the omount presented in
the Balonce Sheet is the outsianding principal repayable {plus accrued interest); and
interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement,

Gains and losses on the repurchase or eorly settlement of borrowing are credited and
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure Iine in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the vyear of
repurchase/setflement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a
restructuring of the loan porifolio that involves the modification or exchange of existing
instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducied from or added to the
amorlised cosl of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the lite of the loan by an adjustment
to the effeclive interest rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive iIncome and
Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be
spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the
term that was remaining on the loan against which the premium wos payable or
discount receivable when it was repaid. The reconciliation of amounis charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net charge required against
the Districl Fund Bolance is managed by a fransfer ic or from the Financial Insiruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
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Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into two types:

a. loans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not
quoted in an active market

b. available-for-sale assets - that have a quoted market price and/or do nol have fixed
or determinable payments.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially
measured at fair value. They are then measured at their amorlised cost. Annual crediis
to the Financing and Invesiment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying
omouni of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For
most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented in
the Balance Sheet is the ouistanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and
interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
amount receivable for the yearin the loan agreement.

when soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the
interest that will be foregene over the lite of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised
cost than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Sialement
at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amorlised cost of the
loon in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on
the Disirici Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year — the
reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance is
managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the
Movement in Reserves Sialement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a
charge made to the Financing and Invesiment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the canrying amount and the present value of the revised future
cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Available-for-Sale Assets

Avdilable-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council
becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of a financial instrurnent and are initially
measured and coried at fair value. Where the asset hos fixed or determinable
payments, annual credits to the Financing and Invesiment Income and Expenditure line
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for inlerest receivable are
based on the amoriised cost of the asset mulliplied by the effeclive rate of interest {or
the insirumeni. Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g.,
dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it
becomes receivable by the Council.

Assels are maintained in the Balance Sheetl at fair value., Values are bosed on the
following principles:

a. instruments with quoted market prices — the market price

b. other instruments with fixed and determinable paoyments — discounied cash flow
analysis

c. equity shares with no quoled market prices - independent appraisal of company
valhintinne

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:

« Level 1 inputs - quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that
the authority can access at the measurement date.

» Level 2 inputs - inputs other than guoled prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly,

* Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and
the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for -Sale
Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been incurred - these
are debited to the Financing ond Investiment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any net gain or loss for
the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event
thot payments due under the confract will not be made ({fixed or determinable
payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement, if the asset has fixed or determinable payments,
the impairment loss is measured os the difierence befween the camying amount and the
present value of the revised future cash flows discounied ot the asset's original effeclive
interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value
against the acquisition cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation).

Any goins and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the assel are credited or debited
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expendilure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses
previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve,

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is caried at cost (less any
impairment losses).
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Foreign Currency Translation

where the Council has entered into a fransaction denominated in o foreign cumency,
the transaction is converted into sterling ot the exchange rate applicable on the date
the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the
year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains
or losses are recognised in ithe Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure ling in
the Comprehensive iIncome and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third
party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is
reasonable assurance that:

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached 1o the paymenis, and
b. the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Siatement until conditions atiaching to the grant or contribution have been
safisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify ihat the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or contribution are
required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or
service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and confributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are caried in the Balance Sheet as creditors, When conditions are salisfied, the
grant or contribution is credited to 1he relevant service line (atributable revenue grants
and contributions} or Taxation ond Non-Specific Gront Income (non-ring-fenced revenue
grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Staiement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yel {o be used to finance capilal expenditure,
it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is
posted to the Capital Adjustmeni Account. Amounts in the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve are transferred to the Capiial Adjustiment Account once they have been
applied to fund capital expendilure.
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Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance bui are
controlled by the Council as a result of past events {e.g. software licences) is capitalised
when it s expected that future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the
intangible assel to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is
technically feasible and is intended fo be completed (with adequate resources being
available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver
service potential by being able 1o sell or use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where
it can be measured reliably as attributable to the asset and restricied to that incurred
during the development phase {research expenditure is not capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or
primarily intended to premote or advertise the Council's goods or services.

intangible assets are measured inifially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference o an aclive
market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and
they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible
asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant service linefs) in Cost of Services on
Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An
asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might be
impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s} in Cost of
Services on Centinuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible
asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
ond Expenditure Stalement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses ond disposal gains and losses are not
permitted 1o have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the District Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posied to the Capilal Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds
greater than £5k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Confracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inveniories is assigned using the FIFO/weighted average costing
formula.

Long Term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or deficit on
the provision of services with the value of works and services received under the
contract during the financial year.
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Investment Properly

Invesiment properties are those that are used solely fo earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. The definifion is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properfies are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value,
based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable
paries at arm's length. Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued
annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied
to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properiies are credited to the Financing and
Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and
result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains
and losses are not permitted by siatutory arrangements fo have an impact on the District
Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund
Balonce in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted 1o the Capital Adjustment
Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme
(Northern Ireland) Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures
for the maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill
but there are no tradable allowances. It is not a ‘cap and trade' scheme since landfill
allowances are not tradable, For this reason, landfill ollowances are not recognised as
assets on the Balance Sheet.

Leases

Leases are classified os finance leases where the terms of the lease transter substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land ond buildings elements are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right 1o use an
asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of ihe
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.
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The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheel at the commencement of the lease at ils fair value measured at the lease's
inception (or ithe present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower}. The asset
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation 1o pay the lessor. inifial direct costs
of the Councit are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry
into & lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the
lease liabiiity, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expendiiure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using
the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged
over the lease term if this is shorler than the asset's estimated useful life.

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and
impairment losses arising on leased assets. instead, a prudent annual provision is made
from revenue towards the deemed capital invesiment in accordance with siatutory
requirements. Depreciation and impairment losses are therefore replaced by a revenue
provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.

Operafing Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straighi-line basis over the life of
the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a rent-free
period at the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

wWhere the Council gronis a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the
commencement of the lease, the camying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
{whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is wiitten off to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as
part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the Council’'s net investment in
the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the asset at the lime of disposal), matched by a lease asset {long term debtor)
in the Balance Sheet.
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Lease rentals receivable are apporiioned between:

a. a charge for ithe acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write down the
lease ossel (long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (crediled to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement).

The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal
is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will be required to
be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out
of the General Fund Balance to the Caopitol Receipts Reserve in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in relation to the lease asset is to be settled
by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund
Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element for the charge for the
acquisition of the interest in ihe property is used to wiite down the lease asset (debtor).
At this point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts
Reserve.

The writien-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed
assets is fully provided for under separate arangements for capital financing. Amounts
are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Slatement.

The Council as Lessor - Operaling Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the
Other Operaling Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credils are made on a straighi-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this
does not match the patiern of payments {e.g., there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
ihe lease are added to the camying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the camying amount of an assef will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediaiely before
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to
sell, Where there is a subsequent decrease fo fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Compreghensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously
recognised losses, Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. Additional policy
detail required where a Council is carrying a disposal group as an Asset Held for Sale.
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If assets no longer meel the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified
back to non-curent assets and valued at the lower of its camying amount before they
were classified as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, omorisation or revalualions
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and
their recoverable amount at the date of the decision nef to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified
as Assets Meld for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the camying amount of the asset in
the Balaonce Sheet {(whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is
written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipis from disposals (if
any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the assel at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the
assel in the Revaluation Reserve are transterred to ithe Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the
Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated 1o the Reserve from the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Stalement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of fixed
assets Is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital finoncing. Amounts
are appropriated to the Capital Adjusiment Account from the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those thai benefit from the
supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2016/17 {SeRCOP), The total absorption costing principle is
used - the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in
proportion to the benefils received, with the exception of:

a. DRM and Corpeorate Management - cosis relating to the Council's status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation.

b. Non Distributed Costs = the cost of discretionary benefils awarded to employees
refiing early and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-
operational properties.

These two cost calegories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Statement , as part of Nei
Expenditure on Continuing Services.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental o others or for adminisirative purposes and that are
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as Property,
Plant and Equipment.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable thot the future
economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but does
not add to an asset's potential to deliver fulure economic benefits or service potential
(i.e.. repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incured.

Measuvrement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located

The Council does not capitalise borrowing cosis incurred whilst assets are under
construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed fo be its fair value, unless
ihe acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council . In the latter case, where
ihe asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the corrying amount
of the asset given up by the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difiference between fair value
and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has
been made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated
Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance 1o the
Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, communily assets and assets under construction — deprecioted historical
cost

- all other assets - fair volue, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset
in its existing use {existing use value - EUV]

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature
of an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficienily regularly to
ensure that their camrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the
year-end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by
credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Excepiionally, gains
might be credited 1o the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement where
ihey arise from ihe reversal of a loss previously charged to a service.
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The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only,
the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that doie have been
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impdairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated o
be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than
the canying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are ideniified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is wrilen down against that balance [up to the amount
of the accumulated gains), with any excess charged io the service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the camying amouni of the
asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement,

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure S$iatement, up to
the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been
charged if the loss had not been recognised.

The same accounling trealment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general
fall in asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit
specific o an asset as is in the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation Is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is
made for assets without a deferminable finite useful life (i.e., freehold land and certain
Communily Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use [i.e. ossets under
construction).
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Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

Plant and equipment {excluding IT equipment, carpark plant and equipment) -
depreciated on historic cost using a standord life of 5 years. IT equipment is depreciated
using a standard life of 3 years. Carpark plant and equipment is depreciated using a
standard life of 15 years as advised by a suitably qualified officer.

Infrastructure Assets - depreciated on a siraight line allocation over a range of 10 to 20
years depending on the type of asset,

Buildings, installations and fittings - depreciated on their historical volue over the
estimated remaining life of the asset as advised by the valuer. Depending on the type of
building, installation or fitting the maximum useful life will be in the range of 15 1o 50
years,

Componentisation

where an item of Properly, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose
cost is significant in relation to the tolal cost of the item, the components are
depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment
assets.

Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference
between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that
would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred eoach year
from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Joint Operations

A joint operation is one whereby parties have rights o assels and obligations for liabilities
of a joint arrangement,

The Council's interest in Tullyvar Landfill is accounted for as a joint operation. The
Council's share of the income and expenditure of Tullyvar is included within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in line "Environmental Services' and
the Council's share of the assets, liabilities and reserves are included in the relevant lines
in the Balance Sheet.
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Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are asseis with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to
knowledge and cullure, Heritoge Assels are those assets that are intended to be
preserved in trust for future generatfions because of their cultural, environmental or
historic asseciations. They would be held by this aulhority in pursuit of our overall
objectives in relation 1o the maintenance of heritage.

The majority of the Council's Heritage Assels are held in Enniskillen Castle which has two
collections of heritage assets which are held in support of its primary objective i.e.
increasing the knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the Council's history and
local area. The Council also holds several pieces of public arl. Heritage Assets are
recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and losses) in
accordance with the Council's accounting policies on property, plant and equipment.
However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as
detqiled below. The accounting policies in relation to heritage assets that are deemed
to include elements of intangible heritage assets are also presenied below. The Council's
collectlions of heritage assels are accounted for as follows:-

Local History & Folk Life - The collection of local history and folk life includes important
artefacts from the history of the local area. These items are reported in the Balance
Sheef at insurance valuation which is based on market values. The collection of local
history and folk life artefacts are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual
value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. The
colleciion is relatively static and acquisitions and donations are rare. Where they do
occur acquisitions are initially recognised al cost and donations are recognised al
valuation ascertained by the museum's curators in accordance with the Council's policy
on voluations. Fine & Decoralive Aris Collection - the fine and decorative arts collection
includes paintings {both oil and watercolour) and sketches and is reported in the
Balance Sheet at market value. Valuations are completed pericdically when there has
been changes in the market for similar items or when the museum curator believes
valuation is necessary. The assets within the fine and decoralive arts collection are
deemed to have indeferminate lives and o high residual value; hence the Council does
not consider if appropriale 1o charge depreciation. Acquisitions are made by purchase
or donation, Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and donations are recognised at
valuation with valuations provided by the external valuers and with reference to
appropriate commercial markets for the painifings using the most relevant and recent
information from sales at auctions. Art Sculptures - these are carried at histerical cost and
are not depreciated. Heritage Assets - General - the camying amounts of heritage assets
are reviewed where there is evidence of impairment for heritage assets, e.g. where an
item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or where doubts arise as to its
authenticity, Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance with the
Council's general peolicies on impairment — see note in this summary of significant
accounting policies. The Museum will occasionally dispose of heritage asseis which have
a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such items
are accounted for in accordance with the Council's general provisions relating to the
disposal of property, plant and equipment. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately
in the notes 1o the financial statements and are accounted for in accordance with
stalutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure and capilal receipts.
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Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic
benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Forinstance, the Council may be invelved in a court case that could
eventually result in the making of a setilement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council
becomes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the balance
sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into account
relevant risks and uncertaqinties. Long term provisions are discounted to preseni value.,

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheet. Eslimated setilements are reviewed at the end of each financial year -
where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be
required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made). the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to setlle a provision is expected to be
recovered from ancther party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as
income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
if the Council settles the obligation.

Reserves

The Council sels aside specific amounis as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are crealed by appropriafing amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Stalement. When expenditure to be financed
from areserve is incumed, it is charged 1o the appropriate service in that year against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, The reserve is then appropricied back into the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against
District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial insiruments and retirement benefits and do not represent usable resources for
the Council - these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.
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Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges fo revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading
accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed
assets during the year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no
occumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written
off

c. amorlisation of intanaible fixed assets atiributable to the service,

The Council is not required to raise District Roies to cover depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision
from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borowing requirement
[equal to either an amount calculated on o prudent bosis determined by the Council in
accordance with statutory guidance]. Deprecialion, revaluation and impairment losses
and amortisatlions are therefore replaced by minimum revenue provision [MRP] in the
General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statemeni for the ditference between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statule

Expenditure incurred during the year thal may be capitalised under siatutory provisions
but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as
expendiiure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in the year, Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this
expenditure from exisling capilal resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement
in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustrment
Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so that there is no impact on the level
of District Rates.

Volue Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is
shown net of Value Added Tax, unless it is imecoverable.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of ils non-financial assets such as surplus assets and
investiment properties and some of ifs financial instruments such as equity shareholdings
at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid fo ifransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participanis at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 1akes place either:
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) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-
financial asset, the authorily takes into account a market paricipant's ability to
generale economic benefils by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it
to another market participant that would use the asset in iis highest and best use. The
authorily uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant cbservable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the authority's financial statements are categerised within the
fair value hierarchy, as follows:

tiLevel | - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilifies
that

the authority can access al the measurement dale

*Level 2 —inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

*Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

Paragraph 3.3.2.13 of the 2016/17 Code reqguires changes in accounting policy tc be
applied retrospectively unless alternative transitional arangements are specified in the
Code. Paragraph 3.3.4.3 requires an authorily to disclose information relating o the
impact of an accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been
issued but not yet adopted by the Code for the relevant financial year. The additional
disclosures that will be required in the 2016/17 and 2017/18 financial statements in
respect of accouniing changes that are introduced in the 2017/18 Code (ie that are
relevant to the requirements of paragraph 3.3.4.3) are:
+« Amendment to the reporting of pension fund scheme fransaction costs
» Amendment to the reporting of investment concentration (see paragraph 6.5.5.1 (M)
of the 2017/18 Code) 31.

These amendments are not applicable to the Council.
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Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from 1a below the Council has had to make
certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about
future eventis. The critical judgemenis made in the Statement of Accounts are:

Landfill

The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping and aftercare costs
for the landfill site depends on a judgement around the appropriale discount rate to be
used and the number of years over which ihese costs need to be provided. The land fill
Provision are sensitive to the assumptions used.

(i) Pension Liabiiity

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to
increase, changes in retirement ages, morality rates ond expected returns on pension
fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged fo provide the Council with expert
advice about the assumptions io be applied.

The approximate impact of changing key assumplions on the present value of the

funded defined benefil obligation a at 31 March 2017 and the projected service cost for
the year ending 31 March 2018 is set out in note 19,
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Fermanagh and Omagh Disirlct Council
Noles to the Financlal Stalements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

2

Segmantal Reporling
a Segmenial Reporfing Analysls

The onolysls of Income and expendilure by service on the face of the Comprehensive income and Expendilure Slalement is
specified by Ihe Service Reporting Code of Praclice. The segmental reporting noltes wilhin Ihe finoncial stalements are based on
the sumemary fist page of ihe Genaral Fund - Service Income and Expendilure Analysis in the Department for Communities’
Accounis Direclion.

Tha General Fund = Servica Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented to the Depariment ior Communities & as follows:

201417 2015/16 (Restated)

| " Gross ) Nel- Grozs

Servicas Expanditure  Gross Income Expendiiure Expendiivre Gross Income  Net Expendiure
- . 5 _ i L £ £
Cullure and Heiitage 2.399.163 [351.948) 2047215 2,357.5%0 [332.549) 2025041
Recreation and Sport 9,633.703 {2,2946.223) 7.337.480 8.515,090 {2.458,705) 6,056,385
Tourism 1,954,203 [507.841}) 1,448,362 1.848,159 |645.842) 1,202,217
Communily Services 1,164.919 {310,450} 854,469 1.003.815 1253.102) 750,713
Lelsure and Recreational Services 15,153,988 (3,445,462} 11.687.524 13,724,454 [3.690,178) 10,034 454
Cemefery, Cremalion & Moduary 435842 {33.016} 402,826 385,117 135.485) 348,422
Environmenial Health 3,262,146 {1,486,273) 1775872 3.431.837 1.623.341} 1,808,498
Flood Delence and Land Drainage - - - . . .
Public Conveniences 653,822 {198} 653,624 591,478 1165} 52103
Licensing 208,648 [62.035) 146,613 108.737 (71,043} 37,494
QOther Cleaning 2,086,251 {5.443) 2,080,808 1.786.916 16,809} 1.780,107
waste Collecfion 4,807,582 (442.877) 4,163,705 4 480,167 [249.008) 4,231,159
Wasle Disposai® 5307.823 {1.225,%00) 4,081,923 4,359,682 [189.266} 4,170,416
Share of Tullyvar Qperating

income and Expendilure 298.024 {412,410 (114,586) 484 888 (337,095) 147,793
Other Community Assels 545,498 {33.491) 512,007 974,830 [34.774) 240,054
Minor Works 370,168 128,735) 342,433 461.949 [V18.897) 343,072

Environmental Sarvices 17,774,804 {3.731.578) 14.045,225 17.045 421 {2 667,083) 14,398,540
Community Planning 213,551 213,551 197.555 [1.000 196,555
Economic Development 1,468,128 {1.136.314) 531,814 2.272.596 (764.261) 1,508,335
EV Rural Development 273,153 1201,024) 12027 280,155 {212,444) 67711
rban Regenerolion and

Community Develepment 1,742,353 [334,824] 1,407,529 1.052.276 [257.001) 795.245
Planning Policy 655,807 11,297 667,104 643,279 {1.894) 441,385
Development Contral 1,218,743 {1.299.133) 180,390) 1,138,274 {1.063.927) 74347
Building Control 1,223,310 [728.05%} 495251 1,215,660 [B54,794) 360,844
Environmental inltiatives 137,598 111,141} 125,457 123.447 {2.884) 120,541
Planning and Devalopment Sarvice 7,132,443 {3.699.200) 3.433.443 4,923 247 (3,158.239} 3,745,003

Off-sireet Parking Servicaes

383105

[1.022.71%)

{439,614}

473,533

{90%.334)

{435,801)

Higghwoys and Transport Services

Democralic Represenlation and

583,105

{1,022,719)

{43%.614)

473,533

{90%.334)

[435.801)

Management 1,432,855 [15.403) 1,417,252 1,412,439 [9.821) 1,402.618
Corporate Monagement 1,478,687 [7.405) 1.471,282 1,251,244 (60) 1.251.184
DRM gnd Corporale Managemant 2,911,342 (22,808)  2.688.534 2,563 485 (7.881 2,453,804
Trading Services - . . - -

Non Distribuled Costs 89,576 {47.134) 42,442 1,273,728 - 1.273.738
Central Services to the Public B47.871 (607,798} 242,073 81%.809 {564,158) 255,651

Other Services

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

*Wasle Disposal income Includes exceplional iIncome of £1min respect of the Drummee Landfill site conlract dispute

739,447

A4 497 329

{654,932)

[12.597.699)

284.515

31.899.630

2.093.547

42,944,204

(564.158)

(10,998.893)

1.52%.38%

31.945.3%1



b Reconcillutlon to Nel Cost of Services In the Comprehensive Income and Expendiure Stalement

This reconcilialion shows how the figures In the analysis of portiefo income and expenditure relale 1o the amounis Inciuded in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statemenl

2015/14 2015/14

2018617 {Restaled) (Restated)
S A o T S A R L R T i & R T b et L pER
Net Cost of Services In Service Analysis 31,899,430 31,945,391

tiems excluded from Service Analysls:

Add amounis not reported in Service Analysis but included in Net
Cosl of Saervices In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

Remove omounts reported in Service Analysis bul nol included in
Nel Cosl of Setvices in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Slalement

Cost of Services on Conlinuing Operatlons In the

Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statement 31,879,420 31945371

llems Included In Nel Cperating Expendliure excluded from
Service Analysls:
Other Operaling Expendiivre {24,875} {5.592)
Financing and Investment income and Expendilure 444,942 575,832
422267 570,241

el Operating Expendliure per ihe

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure




3 Adjustment belwean an Accounting Basls and Funding Basis under Regulations
Amounts included In the Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Stalement but required by stotule o be axcludad when
delarmining the Mavement on thae General Fund Balance for the year:

2015/14 (Reslated)
ey o e e P e e o | MO T £ £ PSR £
Amaunis included in the Compre| sive Incoame and Expendiure Slatement but required by statule o be excluded when
datermining the Movemeant on the General Fund Balance for the year:

Deracognition [other than disposal] of non-
cyirent assets 10 - 48,283

Revaluation increases/decreases laken o

Surplus/Defic on the Provisian of Services 19 {294,184} [2.0013,437)

Depreciolion charged in the year on non-

currtant assels 10 5,176,007 4,881,821 5.940.055 3,994,501
Derecognition of finance Lease 11 200775

Caorrying amount of nan cument assets sold 7.3 15,320 35.825

Proceeads from the sale of PP&E, investiment 20 [39.9%5) 124,675) {41,425) {5,590}

Net chorges made far refirement benefits in
accordance with IAS 19 19 4,270,000 4,790,000
birect revenue financing of Capital Expendilure

11.23 [1.224,424) 11.193.400)
Capital Grants and Donoled Assels Receivable
and Applied in year
9 {419.793) [3.184,673)
Capital Gronts Receivabie and Unopplied in
year 2 [1.012.341) {399,7000
Adjusiments in relellon fo Shor-term
compersated absences 73 77.407 131,484
Adjustments in relalion to Lessor Amangements
5 26,342 27.754
Provislons Discount Rate Reserve Adjusimend
23 138,279} {351.288)
Amounts nel included In the Comprahensive
Income and Expenditure Statement but required
by statule to be Inciuded when determining the
Mavemen! on the Genaral fund Balance for the
year
Slalulory Provision lor the linancing of Capilal
Investment 11.23 {1.443,804) [1.371.124}
Employers conhibulions payable to the
NILGOSC and relirement benefils poyable direct
to pensionars 12 3.212.317} |3.491.605)
e SN
eagrmarked reserves; 2016/17 1] {Restated) 0
| M= ] WG] |Hotes ~ g3 B ot £
Capital Fund
Interasi [11.594) [3.004)
Other 22 12.025.000) [2.035.5945) {1,099.534) {1.102,550)
Renewal and Repalrs Fund
Inerest {12.795) (7.527)
Olhar 22 11.489.750) {1.502.545) {505.211) {512.738)
Other Funds and earmarked reserves
Iinterest [8.180) 16.377)
Fram Olher funds [{246,110) 18,045
Ofher 22 {1.000.000) {1.254,25%0) {1.337.380) {1,325.712)
14.793 431} 12.941.000}




4

Cosl of Services on Conlinulng Operallons

'] General power of competence

Prior 1o Local Governmenl Reform on st Aprll 2015, expenditure for speciol purposes was limiled under Section 40 of the Local
Government Finance Acl (Northemn hreland) 201t. This section wos repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Govermnment acl
{Northern Ireland) 2014.

Under Section 79 of the Locol Government Act {Northern Ireland) 2014, the Councll has the power to do anything that Individuals
generally may do. Councils have the power o do this with or withoul charge. The power of competence s nol imited 1o
beneaifitling the areq or its residenls nor is i limited by existing powers.

The Actual Expenditure under the power of competence amount fo £0 during 2016/17 (£0in 2015/14).

[ External Audit Fues

The Council has incured the following cosis relaling o the annua! audit of the Slatement of Accounts, Improvemenl oudit and
assessment fees, certificafion of grani claims and ofher services provided by the Counclls external audilors.

2016/17 2015/14

a; W e il
Exieinal Audit Fees 50,425 31,000
Other Fees 1.201 -

OGO

The audit fees for 2014/17 include the financial audit fees and the improvement and assessment audit {ees. There were no other
fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the oppoinled audilor aver and above those described {2015/14 £0].
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[l Crerating and Fnonce leases
Council as Lessor
o Finance Leasas (Councl os lessor) ) =

The Council has leased aul a number of properiies within the Dishict to further community, recreational and commercia
aclivities. Al the inceptian of the leases. the leose terms ranged flom 99 to 999 years,

The present vaiue of lease payments receivable under the finance lease arrangements is recognised as a ieceivable ond
Included in both short and long term debiors. The dilference betwaen the gross amount receivable and the presend value of the

amaunis receivable is recognised as uneamed flinance inceme,

Gross recalvobles em finance leases 2054617 2015/14
| ' £ £
Long Term Debtors
FAnance leases- gross receivalyes 466,459 491,451
Nei Prasent Value 466,459 491,461
Short Tarm Deblors
Finance leases- gross receivables 25,002 246,342
Net Present Valve 25,002 26,342
Gross tecelvables from finance laases
No later than 1 year 25.002 26,342
Laler ihan 1 year and no later than 5 years 87,920 92,633
Later thon 5 years 378.53% 198.828
Total gross tecelvables | 491,441 | 517.803
Net Investmant In finance leases | 491,481 | 517.803
The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as lollows:
| 2016N17 2015/14
£ £
No loler than | year 25,002 26342
Later than | year and ne later than & yeaors 87.920 92.633
Later than 5 years 378.53% 398 828
Tatol gross recelvables | 491441 | 517,803

The unguaranteed residual values of the assels leased under finance leases al the end of the year are eslimoled al £3 {15714 £0}.
The accumulated allowance for uncolleclable minimum lease payments receivable is £0 (15/14 £0).

No confingent renls were recognised as receivable by the Council,



b|Operaling Leases {[Counclias lessor) i S i ‘= RSN T,

The Councll, in accordonce with its stotutory ond discretionary responsibiiities, leases out property and equipment under
operating leases {or the foltowing purposes:

« for the provision of community services. such as sports facililies, lourism services and communily centres

- for economic developmen! purposes lo provide suitable atfordable accommodalion for small local businesses

- any other puipases

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the current year amounts to £358.950.
No conlingent rents were recognised

The lease terms are between 1 and 99 years, Future minimum lease income is sel out below:

2014717

Sulkdings  Properes  Bulkings  Properlies
= s E 13 i B _E_ e &
Minlmum lease rentals receivable:

No lgter than | yeor - 276.614 - 324,948
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years - 324,397 - 217.517
Later than 5 yeors - 394,289 - 110,341

The assels leased by Ihe Councll 1o third pariies are Included in the tollowing calegories of Property, Plani and Equipment with
carmying values of

£

Cosl 5,358,263 4,354,700 5,17),855

Accumulated depreciation and

|impairments at 1 April {511,028) = [324,33%) -
Depreciation charge {or the year {181,428) - [\76.798) -
Impairmenis 114,317 {1,988.850} {177.490) 145,800}
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Council as lessiee

< Finance Leases (Councll as lessea)

The Councils vehicles ara heid under finance leases. The net carrying amowni of the vehicles held under finance l=ase
arangemenis is £526,264 [2015/16 £484.044). The assels are inciuded under Vehicles, Plant & Equipmeni which form an infegral
parl of properly, plant and equipment [see Nole 10g-leased assels). The rentals poid for vehicles held under fBnance leases
lotalled £213.944 {2015/146 £242.291)

No confingent rentals were recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income ond Expendilure Slalement during the
reporiing period under review, and no future sub-tease income Is expected to be recefved, os oll assels are used exclusively by
fhe councll

The lease agreamenis for Ihe vehicles and IT equipment include fixed lease payments and a purchase option ot 1he end of the
respective lease larms. The agreements are non-canceilable but do not include any further restrictions.

Future minimum fnance lease payments at the end of each reporing period under review are as Tolows:

Whhin'1
year 1{o 5 yeans  Alter 5 years Total
[ 3 £ £ £

2016/17

Finance leases payments 369.801 - - 369,801
[Less: finance charges {18.294) G - [18.295)
L —
[Nat present value 1 351505 | - 1 - 1 151,505
2015114

Fnance leases payments 289,459 600.040 402,500 1.291,9%%
Less: fnance charges {32.084) [64.393) [31.609) (128,085)
Nel present volue | 257,375 | 535,647 | 370,891 | 1,163,913
included in the Balonce Sheet os: 2007 2014 2015
. £ £ £

Cunent liablilies 351,505 257,375 -

Lang lerm liokiiilies - 706,538

Total [ as1505 [ 106393

d Opercling Leases (Councll a3 lessee)

The Councll has acquired its olfice photocopiers and prinlers by enfering Inlo operaling leases with typical lives of 3 years.

The expenditure charged 1o services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Stalemen! duwing the year in relation 1o
these leases was:

201817 201514
Vehicles,
Lond and Plant and landand  Vehicles. Plant

Buildings  Equipment BuMdings  and Equipmant,

| £ : £ £ £
Minimum lease paymenis | - | 30,790 | = | 23.390
Tolal | | 30,790 | = 23,390

No sub-lease paymenis or conlingent rent paymenfs were made or received. No sublease income is expecled as all assels hald
under operaling lease agreements are used exclusively by the Council,

The fulure minimum lease payments due under non-conceliable aparating leases in lutwe years are sel out balow

201617 209514
Vehicles,
Lond and Pant and lond and  Vehicles, Plant
Bulldings Equipmeni Bulidings  and Equipment

£ £ £ £
Minimum lease renfals payable:
No later than 1 year - 26916 - 28,024
Laler ihan 1 year and no later than 5 years = 53.627 - 54,615
Later thon 5 years = -
Total { | 80,543 | - | 82,639
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3 Employee Costs and Member Allowances
-] Stalf Costs 2014/17 2015/16

. e e e e T :
Salaries and Wages 17,484,065 17,797,618
Employers NIC 1,386,998 955,422
Employers Superannualion 3300.148 3,169,348

In oddition, ogency costs during the year omounted to £278,.544 [15/14 £278,505}.0

The Counclil's cunent contiibution rale to NILGOSC schemae is 20%. At the last octurial voluation, dated 31 March 2016, the Fund's
assels os o whole were sutficient io meet 82.4% of 1he liabilities accrued up o thol date,

Average Number of Employees - where FIE represenls fulllime equivalent employees

L Average Number of émployees 20117 201516 ]
. H . — . . . A Ay e S ETE g I
|Leisure and Recreation Services 162 161
;gqvironmentul Services 304 302
[Ftonning and Davelopment Services 122 114
|Olher 105 (L]

o1Q ] 450

201617 FURETAL

- . - e — T —— T gl ™
| . _ ‘Numbens  Actual Numbers|
Full-lime numbars employed b47 445
|$uri fime numbers emplayed 215 215

Bsenior Employees Remunerafion 201817 2015/16 |
£50.001 lo £60.000 10 3
£60,001 to £70,000 ] 5
£70.001 1o £80,000 - 4
EB0.001 Io £50,0000 3 -
£70,001 1o £ 100,000 5 B
£100.001 1o £110.000 1 1
£110.001 lo £120.000 5 5

o T P e e e e e ]
Basic allowonce 569,403 567.978
Moyor's & Depuly Mayor's Allowonce 15,000 15.000
Special Responsibiilty Allowances 25,162 24,840
Dependents' carers allowonce 43§ -
PCSP Attendance Allowance 4,960 5,340
Employer costs 152,409 144,247
Mileage 74,270 75.238
Conferences and Courses 15,142 5,288
Travel & Subsistence Cosis 8.425 1.0%0
Miscellaneous Costs 428 220

Tolal



e Northern Ireland Civil Service Pansion Arrangemaents

As aresull of Reform on 15t Apdl 2015, siall iranstemed from Cenlral Government to the Council are members of the Northemn

raland Civil Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern keland Civil Service Pension anangements are unfunded mult-employer defined benelil schemas but the
Depariment for Communilies is unable 1o identify its share of the underlying assels ond liabililies, The mest up to daie acluarial
valuation was caried out as of 31/03/2012, This valuatlon Is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updaled fo reflec! current
conditions and rolled forward to the reporiing dole of the DOF Superannuation and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as af

31 March 2017,

For 2016-17. employers' contibulions of £268,234 were payable lo the NICS pension arangements at one of four rates in the
range 20.8% 1o 26.3% of pensionable pay, based on salary bonds, The scheme's Actuary revlews employer conhibutions every
four years lollowing a full scheme valuatlon. A new scheme funding valualion based on data as ot 31/03/2015 was completed by
the Actuary during 2014-17. This vaivalion was used 1o determine employer contribution rates for the inlroduclion of o new coreer
average aaming scheme from Apiil 2015. The confribution rates are sel to meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2016-17
to be poid when the member retires, and nal the benefits poid during this period to existing pensioners.

7  Other Operating Expendiiure

a Surplus/Defich on Non-Curten! Assets {excl Invesiment Properties)

2016117 2015116

e R A £

[Froceeds from sale {39.995) 141,425)
Carrying amount of non-cumrent
assets sold (excl Investment
Properiies) 15,320 J35.833

{24.67 5} 15.592)
Other Operating Expenditure 205617 2015/16
| oo P fiwe £ E!
{Surplus) / Defich on Non Cunrent Asseis {24,675} 5.592)

(24,675) 00T [5,592)

56



B Flnancing and Invasiment Income and Expendiure

a Interesi Poyable and Simllar Chargas

b Interest and Investment Income

2018117 2015/14

2016117 2015714
Leasa/hire puichase Interest 32474 . 35.330 |
Bank charges - 8.173
Governmeni Loan [ntesest 585.135 552,882
517,611 696.385

c Pensions inferest costs

2016/17 2015/14

£ ‘g
Bank interest/{Charges Relunded 43,647 32.960
Employee car loan inlerest [ 30
invesimen! income on Fund Balances
ICupiiol Fund 11.5%6 3016
Repairs & Renewals Fund 12.795 7.527
Other Funds 8.'80 6.377
Other tnvesiment iIncome 13.458 V2.244
87,882 62,156

Net interest on the net defined
benefit lloblity {assel) 411,000 494,000
411,000 494,000

d Income, Expendiure ond changes in Falr Valve of Investmean! Properties

2004117 201518

Income/Expandi orm [ i |
Invesiment Properties: £ : £
Income including rentalincome [295.787] {3492.018)
Net income fram investment
properlies [295.787) {349.018)
Changes In Falr Yolue of
Investment Properiies [196,000) {205.378)

[491.787) [554.394)

Flanagncing and Investment Inc
cnd Expendiiure

2016117

2015/14

e o Oross FF! - - !

Expenditure  Gross Income Expendiure  Expendiiure Gross income  Nel Expendiiure’
g 3 £ £ £ £

Inlarest Payable and Similar

Chaiges 617,611 - 4176110 696,385 - 696,385

inlerest ond Invesiment Income - {89.882} {£9.882) = {62,158) [62,158)

Pensions inlerest cost 411,000 - 411,000 494.000 - 496,000

Other invesiment Income B {295,787) {295,7871 - {349.018) [349,018)

Changes in Fait Value ol

Investment Properlies - {196.000) | (196000} {205.378) [205.378)

1,028,611

(581.66%)

444,942

1,192,385

(616,552}

575,833
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% Toxatlon and Non Specific Grant Income

a Revenue Grants

2018/17 2015/16
LR =Dk I =T
Genera | {3.341.008) | {3.416,059} |
13.341,008) {3.414.059)

b Capltal Grants and Donated Assets - Applled

2016/17 2015/16
Govemnment & Other Grants -
Condilions met and applied in
year {345.903) [3,184.673)
Donoled Assels - Condilon: mef 153,890 -
{419.793) 13.184.673)
c Capltal Grants - Unapplied
2016/17 201516
ke i : £ £
Government & Olher Grants -
Conditlons met and not applied in
vear 11.012.341) [399.7001
11.012.351} {399.700]
d Districl Rales
2016117 2015/14
T ey . £ £
|Current year | (30.458,118) | {29.607.942) |
130,468, 116) 129,607 942}
Taxailon and Nan Speclllc Grani Income 2016/17 2015/14
P o £E £
Dishiict Rale Income 30,468,114 [29,607.9421
Revenue Granis 13,341,008 {3,416,059)
Coplial Grants and Confribuiions {1.432,154} {3,584.373)

(35,247,278) {34,408,374)
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Fermanagh and Omaogh Distric! Council
Notes to the Financlal $talements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

10 ¢ Intanglble Assels

The Council also owns an Inlangibte Anets which relale solely to market righls. the anel was valued at O April 2013 by an independent
valuer from Land and Property Services. The osset ks nal omoriised as Il is contiderad to have an indefinile liis.

Intangible Asets 31703720017 31/03/2014

£
| [Markel Trading Rights | 100.000 | 100.000 )

100.000 100.000

d Invesimant Properties

There wera no addilions, reclossilications, anhancements or translen to investmen! properties durng the year.

Investment Propetties 31/0372017 31/03;2014
o e e T Y

|Rental Incoma kam Investmen Activilies | 1295.7871] 1349.018}
|Nel gain/(los} | (295.787) | {349.01B}

# Hedtage Asseh
Locol Histary and Folk Life

The Counci’s colleciion af lacat history and lolk lile artelacts is reported in the Bolance Sheet of insurance valuation which is based on
market values. These insurance voluaticns are vpdaled pericdically.

Fine and Decoralive Arls
Tha Councils fine and decoralive arls colleclion is reporied in the Bolonce Sheet at inturance valuation which s based on matket values

Thesa inwrance voluokions ara updaled annually. The colleciion clio has paricularly signiicant ilems in jerms of both value ond nole.
including a celleciion of Wiliam Scotf and IP Fanagon paintings voluved al £907,500 and £1 18,400 reypeciively.

1he Council he'ds a small numbaer of olher poinlings, piciures ond prints. These ore not recognised on the bolonce sheed o cost
inlormalion is nol readily avoilable and the Councl balieves that the banelils of oblaining valualions lor these items would not |uslity 1he
coyl. these items are nol cansidered lo ba maolesial in value.

AH Sculplures
Tha Counci's colleclion ol Art Sculpiures iy reported in the Balonce Shee! of historical cost on Ihe balonce sheet and are nol deprecialed
Dispoials In the financlol year

There wera no disposals in Ihe year,

1 Asseh Held for Sole

Cont or Voluoh

Balonce s at | April 2016 35.24% - 35,249
Iranslened iram Non-Curent Assets during yeaor 27.640 - 27 640
Bolonce o1 of 31 March 2017 52318 s 52,318

Net Book Volue

Bolonce oy at 31 March 2017 52318 - 52,318
Balance a1 ot 31 Morch 2016 35,24% - 35,24%
Assefs Held for Sale MNon Curtent

Cost or Voluah

Bolonce os of 1 Aped 2015 41,750 = 41,750
Tronslened rom Non-Cu=ent Assels during year 2,000 = 2,000
Bolence o1 at 31 March 2016 35,249 - 35,249
impelrment | | |

The loss on assels clossified to held for sale and se'd during the year was £10.571 (2015714 £2.101]



p long-Term Asselt - Leased Assets

e v T T S 5 R TOTAL
: - £ r i e, SRR
Cost os Valualion
AT Apiil 2016 2.763.348 - 2,753,348 |
At ) Mareh 2017 2743,348 = 2,763.348 |
Depraclation
Al Apii 2016 2.077.281 - 2,077,281
Pravwided for year 152,428 - 52,428
At )1 Mareh 2017 2.229.70% = 2,229,709
|Na| Book Value 533,437 | =1 533.639
= = Vehiches ~ Equipmani TOTAL
oY T = £ SrE san g
—
Cest ot Voluation i
AL Ageil 2015 2.608.308 - 2,608,308
Add¥ons 155.040 = 55,040
At 31 March 2016 2,763,340 = 2,763,348
e
1.831.46 - 1,891,444 |
45.81 = 245,84
2,077.28 + 2 Q?,m
686,087 = 484 04T
h Falr Value Hisrarchy fer Surplus Asieh
Delals ol the Council's surplus assals and infeemalion obout the for vaiue higrarchy a3 al 31 March 2017 and 2014 are os follows
U g I a Quo = =] o ] O g a g o a u o a
a G i+ -] M- Qb == ob -]-] 4 a Q
A E L 4 * X2 z I £ e ol =i [ 4
Capltal saies marke! comporobles - 302,500 - 302,500
Mazkal rental |allya - 35000 -~ 35,000
Telel - 337.500 . 337.500 |

2015/14 Recurring lair volue
meosurements using:

Guoted Priices in aclive markets for
Identical anets {lovel 1}

| inpuls {Level 2)

Othar signlficant SlgnBcant
chietvable unabservable inputs
{Level A}

Falr value s at
31zt March 2014

[Copital sales market compaorcbles

Transters between levels of the falr value hisranchy

There weve no tronslers between Levels | and 2 during the year.

Valualion Techniques

Thete hat been no change in the valuation techniques used during the yecr for surplus assels.

Surplug Assels were revalued al 31 Masch 2017, in occordance with IFRS 12, by an external valuer.

Gaing ariting rom changes in tha foir volue of urplus osets are recognised in the revalualion reserva, unlass they reverse a previous
imparment charged to lhe Surpius or Delicil on lhe Provision of Services. Losses arising from changes in the far value of the surplus
omehs reduce any ravaluation reserva balanca re‘aling to thof asset and, thereaiter, are racognised in Surplut or Delicit on the

Provision ol Services.

ihe net gain for the paried inciuded in the Surplus or Daficil on the Fravision of Services atfribulable lo @ change in urvealised gains
relaling o ihose assets held al the end ol 1he reporfing parod amounied lo £7.500 (2015/14 £4,000). this was recognised under the
Environmenlal Sarvices in Iha Surplus or Daficit on ihe Provision of Sarvices.



1]

I Falt Value Hlsrarchy for Invesiment Properiies

Cetails of Ihe Council's Invesiment Properties and inlermation aboul the far value hierarchy ar at 31 March 2017 and 2016 ore os foliows

Caplic! sales market comparables - 2,421,200 = 2.421.200
[Market rental capliofisofion - 1,180,850 - 1,180,850
|Market rental capliolisolion and
|sepliol 3ales market s 1300000 - 1.300.000

2014/15 Recuring lair value Quoted P:dces In ccliva matkats for | Olher significant Significant Fals value at at

measuremants using: identical assets {Level 1) obiervable unobservable inputs - 31st Merch 2014

inputs (tevel 2) {level 3)
£

Capltal scles markel comparobles - 2,314,350 - 2,314,350

Market rental Halisatl - 3,189,700 - 3,189,700

Market renlal capitalisofion end

copiial sales market - 1.260.000 - 1.280.000
|Satal | | 6,748,050 | - &.764,050 I

Transiers belween lavels of the lolr value hlerarchy
There were no Iranslen between Levals | and 2 during the yaar,

Yaluatan Teehnl

v ques vsed to Delermine Level 2 and 3 Falr Values lor Surpluy Axsets

The Invesiment Properlies have bean valued fo Far Value as per IFRS 13 and equates 1o being ihe Markel Voiue of the inleres! held,
dafined in ihe RiCS Valuation - Prolessional Standords ot VPS4, parograph 1.2, The Valuer will have referenced quoted prices for
urrilar assels or fiobilities being sold, purchosed or leased in aclive markels, lecding 1o such comparable quoted prices being
clzssified af Level 2in the fair value hierarchy.

Highest ond best use of Invesment Froperties
1ha Counci has an ongoing progremme of capital works ond the estimated cost of the 201718 schemaes is oy follows:

Ir1 mslimaling ihe tor volue of the Council's Invesimen! Properlie. the highast and best vse of the properties is their curren] use.
Valuvation Techniques

There has been no chonge in the valuglion techniques used during the year for invastman! Prapesiias,

Vaiuation Pracess fer Invesiment Properties

The lair value of the Council's Invesiment Properties b meagsured of ecch yecr end. All valuations ore cammied out axiernalty, in
accordance with 1he melhodologies and bases for estimation set out in the professional standords of the Royal Instilulion of Chortered
Suveyors who work closely with eounci clficers regarding oll velualion matiers.

Coplial Expenditure and Capital Financing

The lotal Copital Expendilure incured In the yeor [and comparoliva yeor) is thown below - including ihe value of astets ocquired under
finonce leases and PFYPPP conlroc!s together with the resowces thot hove beean wied o finance k. Whera Capilal Expenditute is 1o be
financed in fulwre yeors by charges lo revenue os assaly are wsed. the expenditure resulls in on increosa in the CFR. o measwe of iha
Copilal Expenditure incured hislorcolly by the Council that has yet to be financed. Tha CFR is analysed In the sacond part of this note.

2016117
£
12,118.029

Coplial Expenditure

Opening Copital Financing Reguirement

Property, Plon! ond Equement { 10 | 2016992 | 7,063,480 | -
Derecagnifian of Finance Lease | | 200,775 1 = -

Sources of Finanes
:amﬁal Ra:aip'lix.__ 18.000) -
Gavernmant Granis ond Cther Contribulions ? (685.569) 14,203,538} -
Trantters from Earmorked Resarves 1100000 i1.494.233) -

Sums e aside from Revenue:

iDiroct Revanus Corfibulions 11.226.424) {1,193.600] 5
Minimum Revenue Provision "~ [1.443.804] i1.371,524] .
— —

Closing Caplial Financing Regulrement 10.874.9%7 12,118.029 -

Explanatien of Movemeants in Yec: 2C18/17  2015/14 (Restcted)

Increais in undarying need to borow {1.443.805)

(1,207.014)



LIl Fulture Caplial Commiiments

The Council has an ongoing programme of capiial works and 1he astimaled coil of tha 2017-18 schemas s as follows:

Gross Cost Gean! Ald
1 £
Sehemes undervay 2,656.000 1, 100,000
Qlher Commitmeanis | | 6.533,000 | 1.647.500 |
Tt $.18% 000 2,747,500 6,441,500
13 g Q 014 4|
Caniral Slores 329938 215620
Ofther | | 178.274 | 186,334

Total 508,214 1 I 401,754

The cost ol invaniones wiitlan down. recognised oi on expensa and included in ‘services” amounled to £172.

14
Il lLong Term Debfors 2014717 2015/14 [Resfated)
£ £
Lang Terrn Deblors - Tultyvor 531.743 714,139
Finance Lease Dabtor 466,452 491.461
Other 77.922 74,443
1 Short Term Deb'ers 2016417 = 2015/14 (Restotad)
£
Gavarnmant Depariments 2.343.314 2,374,565
Oliher Councils 89,835 341,376 |
Bodies exlemnal fo generol governmaent - 8,102
Olher Debtors - Tullyvar 912,734 467,434 |
Revenue Granly 45.525 11,182
Copilal Grants 1,807,075 951,908 |
inleresl Receivable - 747
Capilai Debtors o 67.500
Valua Added Tox 502.635 533,599
Prapaymaents I.CIS_l.Bl 5 179.926
Finance lagse deblon 25,002 26,342
Other 181792 237,782
Trade receivables 492,559 £84. 148
Imparmen o1 - Irade receivables {601.788) 1402.025)
Total Shorl-Term Debtan [ 6.873 50870 5.295.592
Totol Debtars 7.94%.832 4,574 855

The incraase | deblors is primarily due lo the prepaymant ler atsels Ihal ware nal detvered uniil after the year end
which also rellacts in on increose in caopilal gronts due.

Borrowlings
%Y Shoet Term Bormowing 2018717
£

Loans re-payable wilhin one yaar " 1,1§5.619 1.175.91¢%
Finance Leasa Principgl 351,505 | 257,375

1,457,124 1,413,294

[} Leng Term Bontowing 2016117
£ £

Belween | and 2 yeors : 1,131,981 1,11561%
Balwean 2 and 5 yeors A.046.516 3.3156.296
Batween 5 and 10 yeors 2.017.530 3,776.367
In more than 10 yean 2.983.455 2.087.019
Govemment Leans Fupd 9.179.482 2 19.295.301
Total Borrawing 10.546.804 11,728,595

[ 3 Creciitors
3] Shotl Term Creditors 201&/17  2015/14 (Rastated)
£ £

Governmenl| Depariments 537,325 487.2463
Qther Councils 743788 738,962
Capilal Credilors 442.650 B834.503
Loon Inleras! Payable 87,293 99,549
Olher Craditors - Tullyvar 871.78% 615,864
Remuneralion due I¢ employeas 245,397 217.759
Accumulaled Absencas 762491 685.084
Recaipls in advance 535.580 3992.061
Irade crediton 2,272,556 2,456,553
Other - 1,247

Total Shert Term Credliors = ] 4,498,853 6.535.955

The credilr balance of 'Other Councils’ includes £621k of armounls dua fa olher Councils g1 the distribulion ol income
ragarding the Properly Cerlilicate Unit.



b Fayment of Invalces

The Council hos a larget of paying supplier invoices, whera no other terms cre agread, is 30 days.
In 2014/17 the Councll poid 18.882 invoices lotalling £24.171.314 {2015714 16.580 invoices lotalling £24,760.471)

During the year the number of daputed invoices began to be racorded, For Ihe period 1| Oclobes 2014 to 31 March
2017 136 were quened.

The Councll paid:

16,487 (8%} invoices within the 30 day large!
9.914 {53%) invoices within the 10 coy targel: and
2295 {13%) invoices outside of the 30 day lorgel.

The averoge nurmber of days loken o pay suppliers duiing the yeor was 19 cays.

Provislens

lneraase in Interest cost andfer

Balance o3 at 1 provisien Other discount rate  Balanes as ak 31
April 2018 during yecr UfMilsed during year Mavemen!s changes Meaich 2017

Lanaiill Clesure - Drurnmes

£

£

£

£

£

1.948.733 161,850 {44.580) 187,722 2,251,725
Landiil Cloture - Glossmull 1,286.685 76,059 13,909) 152,313} 119,966 1,418,489
Landfil Closure - Mulloghn 120.000 45,105 55.105] - - 120,000
[Redundancy 327,083 91,937 1327.083 - - 71,987
Landfill Closure - Tullyvar 8_85.7‘?7 (58,726 {136.134) 490.937
Othat 10,000 110.000) -
ala g 99 A74 8 Q ) 15t
[Currant Pravisions | il 157,042 | 75.105) | - B 131,937
JLong Term Provisions ] 4,528,299 | 237.90% | (399718} { {235.027) | 307.668 | 4.439.151
Total 4,578,299 394,351 {474 823) (235.027) 307.488 4,571,088
Comporelive Yeor

Provislons

Balance as af 1

April 2015
£

Inzrease In
provizlon

durlng year Ulillsed during yeor

£

£

Other
Movemants

interest cost and/or
discount rafe

changas
£

Bglance a3 ot 31

Morch 2014
{Restaled)

Lond(il Closure - Drurnmaed 1,853,129 209.904 - [154.929)

Landlill Closura - Glatsmut 1.344.284 35,466 [8.200) {28.784] {54,080} 1,284,484
Londlil Ciosure - Mullagnn] 120,000 65,506 (65.506) e - 120,000
Redundancy 179,000 148.083 - - - 327,083
Landlil Ciosure - Tullyvor 1,187,445 kEXAN {341,360) BB5.797
Othey 85.807 {75.807) 10,000
Total A4.78% 484 4%8 670 (470873} 13845 {213 00%) 4,578,279
|Cument Provisians | 125.807 | - 175.807) | - 1 - 50,000 |
|Long Term Provisians | 4.643.859 | 498.870 | 1415068} | §3.845 | [213.009) | 4,528,299 |

498 670

4.789.864

Loncfil Closure - Drummes

{470.873)

{213.00)

4578299

Tha Council hat an operalienal landfil sile ol Drummee. At 31 Morch 2017, the Council has an cbligaticn lor the closure of the site and
the 1ubsequean! altarcare cosls. In line with recommended occounting proctice ond the Code. the gos income due for Drummee s
included in Other Debiors {Nota 14}, This odjusiment is rallecied in Other Movemants. tn 2014-17. the Council fallowed the cladficatian
ksugd in annex & of Crewlar LG 10/17, in relotion to discount rates o be used in the colculolion of the landlill pravition, ond used the
Council's Treasury Advison and CIPFA's recommanded discoun| rotes, based on Notional Loans Fund bomowing rates. lo value the
2016/17 landfill pravision. These same ratas were used o volua the 2015/14 provision. The Northern kefand Environment Agency {NIEA| hos
vpproved the provision cakeulalions os at 31 March 2014. The calculelions es at 31 March 2017 hava been ousessed and cgread with a
gualified civil enginaer [whe s the Director of Environment end Place].

Landfll Closure - Glassmullagh

The Council hos o landfill sile ot Glossmullogh tha!l has ceasad operations. At 31 March 2017, the Council has an obligation for the
citercare cotts ol tha site. In line with recommended acceunting prectice and the Code, the gas income due for Glossmullagh ks
inctuded in Qiher Dobtars (Nala 14), This sdjutiment is reflecled in oiher movements, In 2016-17, the Couneil lollowed the clarfication
issued in gnnex B of Circulor LG 10/17 ond used the Councilt Treatury Advisors and CIPFA's recommeandead disgount ralet. bated an
Nalignal Loans Fund bomowing rates lo velue the 2016717 londfill provision. These same rotes were used to value the 2015714 provision,
The Norihern lreland Environment Agency {NIEAlhas approved the calculations as ot 3F March 2014, The calculalions oy of 31 March 2017
has been ossessed and ogreed with a qualfied civil engineer {who is 1he Dreclor of Environmeni ond Place].

Landfll Closure - Mulloghmare
Ongoing coils have bean incutted in deabng with ihe discharge of one of the Councils closed landfill sites, thase cosly are desmed
substaniial, A proposal hos been prepored whereby the water going enio the site from adjoining properlies will be diverted into a siorm

drain. Discussions are angaing wilh the landowners agents in relalion 10 the site. A provision has been esioblished to fingnce costs which
are eapecied jo arfise over the next threa years ond will be reviawad al each year end.

Redundancy
Te mesi the anlicipated cests of the early release of stoft as a result of Locol Government Reform o provisien has been estoklished

Landiil Closure « Tullyvar

Please reler lo ncte 25.

L 1)



18 Fnonciol Intlruments

The Caunci has no material expasure lo any of the risk lypes identified below in its daalings wilh Financial Insrument,

Credii Risk

Credil risk arises Irom deposits with banks and finoncial instilulions, as well as credit axposures o the Council's customers. Cuslomers are
ausened, loking info account lhakr financial posifion, past aexperence ond olher focton, wilh individual credit limits being sel in
agecordance wilh inteenal ralings in occordance with paramelers tel by the Councd, The provision ler bod and doubtiul debty reflects the
Council's assessmanl ol the risk of non-paymenl by frade deblon ond. s weh, there is ne furlher addilional estimated exposure lo
dalaull and inability lo coilect.

Trade debtors [Exclusivm of Tullywar landlill site} and inclutive ol VAT. con be analyved by oge o fafiows:

Treade debion. mclusiva of YAL an ba
gnatysed by age s lollows:
F

Le3s lhan three months 295327

Three o ix monlhs 4,067

Six months 1o one year 7912

More Ihan one year 194,354 |

thera is no historical experience ol dalaui in ralotion fe deposifs with banks and other financial inslitutions. Therefore thera s no eslimaled
Uquidity Risk

As tha Council has ready occess lo bomowings from |he Deportmant of Financa’s Consoidated Fund. there is no significan! risk thal it will
ba ungble to roise finance fo meel its commitments undar Fnancial Instrumentis. The malurity analysis ol financial kabillies is included in
Nale 15. All frede and other poyables are due for payment within one year.

Markei Rlsk

Intaresi rale rith

The Counci it aapesed o risk in ferms ol its exposure lo inlerest rale mavements on its invetimenls. The Council is In racalpt ol loans rom
Iha Depariment of Finance, however thase ant ora al ixed concasuonary inlarest rales Ihal dilfer Irom the prevaiing markel rates.

Foralgn Exchange fisk

Tha Council has no financial assels o lighililies denominated in loreign curencies and lhus hes no malerial exposure lo loss arising Fom
movemenls in exchange rofes

falr Volue of Soft Leans and Govemnmaent Leans

The Counci isin receipt ol loans Irom the Deporiment of Finance al cancassionary inleresl rotes thal ditier hom the prevailing market
rotes. The lok valus of these loans is £12.948,972 broken down as loliows:

£
Govarnmenl Loans | 12.968.972
Tolal | T2968.977

Falr Yalues of Fnancial Assels and Financlal Liakifitles that are not Measurad at Fair Value (bul for which Falr Value Disclosures ore

Except lor Ihe financiol assals carried of lair value {described in the lable abova) all ather financial labiities end linencial osseli held by
the aulharily ore classifed o loans and teceivablas and long-larm deblon and ciaditon ond ore eanied in the Bolgnee Sheel at
amorised cost. The lar values caleviated oie os foliows,

Finanelal Uabiiities Balance as at 313t March 2017 Balance os at 315t March 2014

£ £ £ £
Financial Liakiliies held ot amertised cost 13.426.226 12,968,972 15,199.384 14,455015
PFl and linance laase Il'ubil-iiiu: 361,346 340,346 1,291,999 1180121
Total 13.787.572 13.330.318 15,491,302 15.435.134

Tha fair volue of borowings is lower than the cattying omaunt becaute Ihe Council's poriclio of loons inclvdes o number ol fixed rote
loans where Ihe inlerest rale payable is lower than Ihe prevoiling rates al the Balonce Sheel dala. this shows a nolional future gain (basad
an economic condifions at 31 sarch 2017) arising Irom a commilment lo pay inferest {o lenders below currenl morket rotes.

Finoncial Assels Balance as ol 315 March 2017 Baolonce as of 313t Maich 2014

£ £ E 3
Loans and Receivablas - - - B
Lgng lerm debtors 544,381 544,381 565,924 565924
Tetal 544,381 544,381 565,924 565,924

The for valua of the inonciol ansels is the canying omount becawe the Cauncil's portiolio of long lerm debtors [nofe 14) Short larm
dabtors ond credilors are nol discioted obove and are corried al cosl os Ihis is a lar opproximaoticon of lher value

Short-lerm dekfors and creditors are carried al casl as this s o lor opprasmation ol their valug.
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Falr Volues of Ananciol Astet: ond Financic! Liabiliies that are net Meosured at Falr Yalue (bul ler whieh Falr Velue Diselasures are
Required).

Recuning Foir Velue sk Mosch 2017 3138 March 3018
Financisl Liabilithes
\Financial Liabflities held 8t amortised cost:
i - 12968972 - 12.968.972 | - 14455015 14,455,015
= —
PF and finance wase
- 361,346 = 341,344 L 1180, 121 1,140,121
= Lol
1 = 13,330,018 . 13.330.218 . 15.635.134 15,535,136
Loons ond Receables - 544381 - 544,301 - 565.924 565,924
- 544381 . 544,381 - 585924 565924

The fair value for financial lablities and financal assets that sre nat measuted a fair value istiaded Jn leve's 2 and 3 ir the table akeve have been arrived at wilng a discounted cash flow analysls with the

mait significant inpets being the discount rate.

The fair value for finandial liablitles and financal assets that are not meatured st isir valus can be atiessed by caloalatisg the present vatue of the cash flows that will Lake plate over the remaining term

ol the lnstruments, using the following Bssumptions.

Fingncial Aszehs finoncial Liabilities
- No sorly reapaymenlt or impairment i - No eorly repaymen! it recognised
recognised

- Estimaled ranges of inlerestrotes ot 31 |- Eslimaled ranges of inlerest rates ot 21 March 2017
March 2017 wera boted on appraprale  [ol 1.15% e 2.95% lor loons payoble based on new
rales provide 1o the Council, lending rates for equivalant koans ai thal daie. These
rotes were provided lo tha Council by ther axierna
Treosury Advisce.

- The tait volue of frade and other
recavables it loken o ba the invaiced or
billed gmount, |

Ralrement Beneflls
o Parliclpation In the Nerthern helond local Government Qificers Penslon Fund.
Ax port of the Jerms and condifions of employmeni of its officers and ather employees, the Councll oliers ratramen! benalits. Allhough

these benefity will not celually be payable unlil emgiayees ralre. the Council has o commitment lo make the poyments thol need 1o be
disclosed at Ihe lma that employees eorn iher fulwe entillement,

The Council participatas in tha Northern Irelond Local Gevernment Olficens’ Pansion Fund adminstered by fhe Nesthern lrelond Local
Governmen! Qfficers’ Superannuotion Committee. This i a lunded scheme, meaning that the Council and employees pay contributions
inla a fund. calcvlcted of a level iniended 1o balance the pension’s liobiitles wilk investmeni assats.

b Tranactons relating 1o refilement bensfits - Comprehensive Income and Expendiiure Stalemeni Charges:

The Ceuncil recognises the cost of relirement banefifs In the Cos! af Services on Confinuing Operaitions when they ore samed by

However. the charge the Counci it required lo moke cgains! districi rates is bosed on 1he cosh poyable in ihe yeaor. ond the real cost of
refeement banekls is raversed oul in the adjutiments batween aceaunling basis & funding basis Under regulalions fine, in the Movemen!
on Raserves Stolemen).

Ina fellowing ronsaclions have bean made in ihe Comivehenive Income and Expenditure Slatement ard the adjusimenls between
stcounling basis & funding basis under reguialions line. in the Movement on Resarvas Slotameni ching Iha year:

Nel cost of services:

Cumen! service cot! 3.802.000 J.812,000
Pas! 1ervice cmh’[geinj 57.000 482,000
Nei inleres! on ne! defined benefit Lighility {(asse!) Al000 496.000

Totel Post-amployment Benshty charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services 4.270.000 4,790.000

Mavemenl in Raserves Siolement:

Revenal of nat charges made o retirement benelil in cecordance with 1AS 19
ond ihe Code {4,270.000) {4.790,000)

Employers’' confributions payabla lo scheme 3212317 3.491.605

The service cost figures include an all nce for admingiretion exp of Lés%.




Remaciuvremants racognitad in Other Comprehansive

Income and Expenditure 2014117 2015/14

£ £
Liakdlily {gains) /iosses due to change In assumptions 26.137.000 [4.535.000)
Liability {gains)/iosses due to change in demograghic atsumptons {812,000 -
Licbility experience (gains)/iosses ariting in Ihe year {1.831.000; {6%4.000)
Acluarial [gains)/lctses on plan assats 13,818,000 367,000

Total golns/{lessas) recognited in Other Compiehensive Income and Expenditure 10,074.000 (4.844.000)

€ Asseit ond llabiHes in relation to relirament bensiils

Reconclialion of present volue of the schame Habilltes: Nate 2014617 2015718
£ €

Bolance as al | Apqil 113,379,000 112.261.000
Current service cost 2.802.000 2,812,000
Interast cost 3.812.000 3.559.000
Contributions by members 994,000 954,000
Rameasurameant [goins) ond losset:
Actuanal gainsfiasses arsing from chonges m Enancial assumplions 26,337,000 {4.835,000)
Actuorial gainsflosses ariting from demographic changes {812.000} =
Actuonial gains/lassas orising cn labiities rom expetience 11,831,003} [694,000]
Pas! service coils/(goins) 57.00¢ 482.000
Eslimoted benefits paid 13.021.000} {2,458,000)
Balance a3y at 31 March e 142,717.000 113,379.000
RacanciilaHon cf present value of the scheme aitets: MNote 2018737 2015714

o i 3 £
Balance a3 al | Apxil 99,409,000 94,708,000
Inferest Income 3.401.,000 3.063.000
Conlribulions by members 994.000 954,000
Conlributions by amployer J.I96._§_3_3_ 3.475.829 |
Conlnbulions in respect of unfunded benefits 15.784 15776
Remaaiurement gain/{loss) 13,618,000 {347,000}
Assets dislributed on setlemenls (10.317) 12.395
Benefils paid 13.621.000) {2.458,000]
Balance as a! 31 March BG s : 117,403,000 $%,409.000

The azpecled raturn on ichame osals is determned by convdering the azpecied relurns avodlobla on the omsels underlying the curant

Investment policy. Expecled yields on fixed interest investmants are based on gross redamplion yields os ol Ihe Balonce Sheel date.
Expected returns on equity investments reflecl long-lerm real rates of return experienced in the respaciive markets.

The actual relwn on schema ossels In the yaar was a loss of £17.019m [2015/14 loss of £2.696m).

Fair Value of Plan Asseta /03,2017 A1/03/2014 31/03/2015
y . r £ £ £
Equily investmenls B7.614 225 71,156,434 -
Bonds 13.524.345 12.008.524 -
Propertly 12,348,315 13,100,208 -
Cash 3.057.6478 2282612 -
Other 1,058,427 494,220 -

93 2440007

The above osse! valuas are al bid value os requirad by (A5 15,
Dalails of asiimatet made by Ihe Fund Monoger whan assessing Ihe fak values of plan esets

The amounts included in the far value of plan asets lor property occupied by the Council was £0.

31/03/2017 31/03/2014 31/03/2015
£ £ £

Fair Value of Employer Asiats 117.603.000 99.409.000 -
|Prasent value of lunded defined benelit ciligation {143,066,000] {113,477,000) -
Pansion asset/{liability) of Funded Scheme (25.453.000) (14,248,000) -
Frasent Value of unfunded datined benefil obligalion 339.000 298.000 -
Net assel/{llability) arsing kem the defined benefli obligati [25.114.000) [13.970.000} -
Amount in {he Balance sheet:
Liabillties {142.7)7.000} [113.379.000) -
Assels 117.603.000 9%.409.000 -

Net Assel/{Liabillly} SnmmmimmTT 7 {25.114.000) {11.970.000)




d Seheme history

|Fai Value of Astels in pension scheme 117,603,000 #9.409.000 =
EPresanl Value of Defined Benalid Obigation 1$42.717,000} £113.379.000} -

Surplus/(deficit) In tha Scheme {25,114 0COY (13.970,000) -
o og dinC amp P
P d 4 Q U 0 d 0

Acluarial gains/{iosses] {10.076.000] 4.864.000 =
increase/{decrease) in rrecoveroble surplui kom membership tall and clher

focion (10.217) 17346 -
Reme:_:.:wamenh recognised in Other Comprahensive income and Expenditure {10.086.317) 4 880 144 -
Cumulative ocluarici gains and icsias [5.204.971) 4,881,244 -
e o=l it

rience golns and losses:

Experiance goins and {iasies) on auels 13,418,000 4{_36?.000] -
Expenience goins and {iossas) on abillies §.831,000 656,000 o

Analysls of projected amount fo be chorged to the Compishensive Income ond Expendifure $iatemneni lor the year to 31 March 2018

3170372018 31/03,2018

Projecied cureni cost
Nal [nterest on the net defined benefi kabiity (atial)

5.840.000

Histery of experdence galm and losses
The actuarial gainsilosses identified s mavements on tha Pensions Reserve 2016/17 can ba analysed inlo the lollowing categories,

meacsured o3 a parcentage ol assels or liabilifies of 31 Morch 2017.

3140372017 31/03:2414 31/03/2015
or or or

palience (Foins and {icises) on Awels 11.58%) -0.37%| 0.00%
Experience gans and (losses) on Liabilities | | i -1.28%| 0.61%| 0.00%

o Basls lor ssimating assels and Nobilities
Liabililies have been auessed on an actuarial basis using the projeciad unit method, on estimaie of the pensions ihat wil be payoble in
ihe fulure yeon dependent on oswmplions oboul mortally rotes, salary lavels, etc. The Council's Fund liabilities have been c1semsed by
Aon Hawilt Limilea, on Indapandan! frm of octuaries. etlimates lor ihe Councl Fund being based on dota pestaining to the latest full
valvalion ol the schame os al 31 Morch 2016,

Longten er pactad il af insturn on astols in the schemea:

!Mnr!nl__ﬂ amumglions:
Yeors Yean

\Lengevity of 65 curent pensioners:

Men 23.2 220
Women 25?8 250,
L
\Langevity gt 65 for future pensioners.
Men 25.4 250
=
[Woman 28,7 279
:lnilatioanension Increqse Rote 200% .80%
Increase Rate 2.50% 3.30%
Ducoun! Rale 2.60% 3.40%
Pension accounts revaluation rale Q.00% Q.00%
nslon [nto retirement lu == ]
Service 10 April 2009 75% 75%
Service potl Apri 2007 J'Sj 75!

Fenilon A Hion: Sensilivity Analysi

Tha pension figures disciosed in {hasa linoncial stalements ore sensilive ta the astumplions used.

fhe opproximale impect ol changing key atumplion: on the praten! valua of the funded dalined banalt obligation at at 31 March 2017
is s&l out below.

In each case. cnly the assumpticn noled balow is ollered; all other assumplions remain tha sama and are summarsed in the disclosure
above

n



Funded Penzion Scheme Benefls
Discounl Rate Assumplon

Adjusiment lo discoun) role +0.1%p.a -0.1%p.a.

Presant voue of Ihe 1zlai obligalicn 139.602.000.00 145.209,000.00
% change in Iha present vaiue of tha iolal obligalion -1 .90% 2.00%,
Projected servicw cost 5.085.000.00 5.393.000.00 |
Approximate % chonge in projecied service cost -2.90% 3.00%

Rate of General Increase In Salares

Adjusiment o salary increasa rale +0.1%p.a -0.1%p.a.

Prasant vaiue ol the 1olal sbiigalian 143,236,000 141,529,000

% change in Ihe present vaive ol tha icial obligalion 0.40% -0.60%
Projected service cost 5.237,000.00 5.237.000.00

Rale of Increose to Penslons In Payment and Delerred Pension Assumplion

Adjusimaent to pansion incraasa rate +0.1%p.a. -0.1%p.a.

Presenl value ol the Igtai obligation 144.343.000.00 140,442 DO0.00

% change in the prasenl valve of the tolal obligation 1.40% -1.40%
Projacted sarvice cost 5.393.000.00 5.085.000.00

Approximate % change in projecled service cosl 3.00% -2.90%,

Posl Refirement Mortality Assumption

Adjustmant la medolily oge raling ouumplion® -1 Yeor +1 Year

Prasent voive of the iotal oligation 144,542.000.00 14,237.000.00
% change in the presenl valye of Ihe tolal obvigation 2.90% 2.90%)
Projecied service cost 5,421.,000.00 5.054.000.00 |
|Appreximale % change in projected service cost 3.50% -3.50%

* A raling of +1 year meons ithat members are oisumad 10 follow Ihe mortalily pattern of the bose lable above lor an individual that is |
yeat oldar than thal

Mojor caiegorias of plan aisets as parcentoge of tofal plan assets

=

Equity invasiments 74.50% B

Government Bands 5.40% 5,70%
!’gmna. &10% X

Pioperty 10.50%| 13.20%

Cash 260K 2,305 [/

Ohor 0¥ PER)| [V

Tolal 100.00% | 100.00%]

@ Northern ireland Civil Service Penslon Arrangements

The Northern Ireland Ciil Service Pansion arangemeants are unlunded mult-employer defined benalil schames but the Council is unabla
la idendily ils share of the underying astels and liabiilies. The meit up ie dale octuarial velualion was canied ouf as at 3170372015, This
valualion is ihen raviewed by Ihe Scheme Actuary and updated ie reflect current condiliont ond relled larward to Ihe reporing dote of
Ihe Dof Superannuation and Olher Allowances Resowce Accounts as ot 31 March 2067.

Conlingencles

Guarantged Minimum Pansion { GMP] is a portion of pension 1hal was occcrued by individuals who were conlracted oul ol the stale
second pension priof lo & April 20146. ON é April 2016 the governmant infroduced the new slote penuon. A consequance ol the legilalion
was lhat the mechonitm which previously provided fully indexed pension payments to pubic servanty ceased to apply in relation to the
GMP portion of Ihe pention. At presen| there is inequality ol benelits belween male and lemale membens who have GMP, Consultalon is
ongoing and unlil this is resolved, Ihe impact on pansion liabiitias is uncerioin, and no aliowance hos been mada lor GMP equalisation in
thesa accounis. HM Ireasury hava introduced an inferim solulion fo ke indexafion ol GMP'S in public sector schamas. under which the
fund become responsible lor paying lull pention incraatas on the GMP for member: who reach |her state pension age batween & Apri
2014 and 5 Decembet 2018 inclusive. Tha valualions used do allow lor Ihete changes which have already bean implemenled,

there is @ contingant liability in raspect of the potential for lagal aclion ond any compensalory award in relalion o lecte matters. Therm is
no opinicn to advise on tha likalihood of his faksity cryslatising ner can his be quantilied financially.
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21  Ofher cash flow disclosures
a Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

A = 0 » or de 0 e pro OoNn o = e 0 0 O

aveme ote 0 ated
£ £
[Depreciation 10 5,176,007 5,940,055
|impaoirment & downward revaluations (& non-sole derecognilions] 10 {294,186} {1.945.154)
Amortisation [included with depreciation above) - -
{increase}/Decreqse in 5tock {106,260} 50814
{increase)/Decrease in Deblors [1.248,648) 5,142,269
Increase/{decrease]} in impairment provision for bod debts [231}_ 418,108
Increase/[Decrease} in Creditors 347,123 {1.411,983)
Increase/{Decrease] in Inleres! Creditors - -
Payments to NILGOSC 319 1,057.683 1,298,395
Camying amount of non-curent assels soid 10 15,320 35830 |
[AIC/WIP writlen oll 1o Net Cosi ol services 1] S
Coniributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 128,780 {171,509

Movement in value of invesiment properties-included cbove in Impairment &
downward revaluations (& non-sale derecognitions)

Amounts posiea fo GIES Tom Donaled Assets Account

a E ? 5.095,582 9.356,850

Adjust for ftems inciuded in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of

services thatl are investing and financing acfivitles

2006017

2015716
{Restated)

Purchase of shart-term {not considered fo be cash equivalents) and long-
term investments {includes investments in associates, joint veniures and
subsidiaries)

Proceeds from shori-term [not considered to be cash equivalents) and long-
term investments {includes investments in associates, joint ventures and

subsidiaries) -
|Proceeds from the sale of PPAE. investment property and intangible assels {39.995) [41,425)
Copilal grants included in 'Taxation & non-specific groni income" {1,378,264) {3.584,373)

o [}
&




b Cash and Cash Equivalenis

For the purposes of the cash flow staternent, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and shori term
deposits and investments {considered fo be cash equivalenis}. net of outstanding bank overdroits, Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the reporting period as shown in the s‘alement of cash flows can be reconcied 1o the related items in the

Balance Sheet as follows:

£ £ £
Cash and Bonk balances 1,279,142 1,731,825 -
Short Term Depaosits [considered to be Cash
Equivalents) 15,802,986 12,047,935 B.268.649
Shori Term Investments {considered to be Cash
Equivalents - Tullyvar Cash Balances) 922,666 879,402 1,040,757
Bank Overdraft {175) [175) -

118004619770

14,658,987

Cash fFlow Sictement: Operating

2016/17

9,309,424

2015/14
{Restaled}

The cash flows from operating activities include: £ [3
Interest received 43,647 32,960
Interest paid 617.611 488,212
d 0
C ®! = g A e U ared
£ £
Purchase of PPAE, investment property and infangbie assels 2,355,055 7,643,407
Purchase of Short Term Investments {not considered to be cash equivalents) - -
Purchase of Long Term Investments - -
Other Payments for Investing Activities - B
|Proceeds from the sale of PPAE, investment property and intongible assets {39.995) (41,425)
Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be cash
equivalents} - -
Proceeds from Long Term Investments B N
Capital Grants and Coniributions Received {1.253,097) {4,498,874)
Other Receipts from Investing Activities - -
Net Cash flows from Investing Activilies 11,061,962° 3,103,108

Cash flaws from Financing Activities

2016/17

Cash Receipts from Short and Long Term Borrowing

Other Receipts from Financing Activities

Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a
finonce lease and on-Balance Sheet PFl confracts

{245,955) [284.064)
Repayment of Short and Long Term Bomowing {1.175,928) {1.087.060)
Other payments for Financing Activilies [767.224) -
Net Cash flows from Financing Aciivities® {2.189,109) 7 7(1,371,124)

T4
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Usable Reserves

a Copltol Recelpls Reserve

These are capital receipts which have orignated primarily from the sole of assets which have not yet been used to finance
capital expenditure,

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by statute s
capital receipts. These are orginally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain/loss
on disposal and posted out vie the Movement in Reserves Statement to the Copilal Receipts Reserve. The reserve is written
down when resources are applied to finonce new capital expenditure or set aside fo reduce an outhority's copital financing
requirement (or used for other purposes permitied by slatute).

£ £

A1 Aprl 165,540 132,115
Movement

Transiers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund

Disposal of Non Cument Assets/ Capital Sales 3,10 39.995 41,425
Capilol Receipts used 1o finance capital expendilure 3. 11 5 {8.000)
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on an

accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory

requirements - -
|Qther Movemagnty

At 31 March 205,535 145,540

b Capital Granis Unopplied account

Where a capital grant or contribution {or part therecf) has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive iIncome and
Expenditure Stotement, but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not been incured at the
Balance Sheet date. the grant or confribution shall be transfered to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (within the usable
reserves section of the balonce sheel). reflecting ifs stalus as a capital resource avaiabie to finance expenditure. This transfer is
reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When. ot o future date, the expenditure 1o be financed from the grant or contribution is incurred, the grant or contribution {or
part thereof} shall be transfered from the Capital Gronis Unapplied Account to the Caopital Adjusiment Account, reflecting the
application of capital resources 1o finance expenditure. This transier is also reporied in the Movement in Reserves Statement or

in the notes 1o the accounts.

Capltal Grants Unopplied account notes 31/03/2017 31/03/2016
£ £

At 1 April 419.777 1,038,942

Movement

Unapplied Capilal Grants received in year 1,012,361 399,700

Unapplied Capital Grants fransferred to CAA in year {265.776) {1.018,845)

At 31 March 1,144,342 419,777

75



¢ Capilial Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act NI} 1972, however this section of the act was repealed
under the Locaol Government Finance Act {Nothern Ireland) 2011, Councils should disclose details where any of these reserves

are earmarked for specific purposes.

Capltal Fund Noles. ..  31/03/2017. 1 31/03/2018
AT 1 April |.13'9,475£ 606,!35£
Transfers between statutary & other reserves & the General Fund 2.036,576 1,102,550
Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA to finonce Capital Expenditure 11 {105,000) {549.210)

Al 31'March

3,073,07177

C 1139475

d Renewal and Repairs Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI} 1972, however this section of the act was repealed
under the Local Government Finance Act {Nothern lreland) 2011, Councils shou'd disclose details where any of these reserves

are earmarked for specific purposes.

Renewol and Repairs Fund Notes ... 31/03/2017 31/03/2016
£ £

At 1 April 1,940,789 1,844,092

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund 1,502,545 512,738

Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA fo finance Copital

Expenditure 11 {416,041}

e Other Balances & Reserves

Other Bolances & Reserves

_31/03/2017.__

31/03/2016

{Restated)

£ £
At 1 April 3,519,840 2,789,173
Transters between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund 1,254,290 1,325,712
Transters between Copital Fund/Renewal 8 Repair Fund & CAA fo finance
capital expenditure 11 [131,524) {595.045)

At 31 March

These reserves are sel aside to cover the costs of future Council commitments,

4,642,606

3,519,840



{ General fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amocunt 1o be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure in accordance
with regulations: this may be different from the accounting cost. The toxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves

Statement.
31/03/2016
General Fund 31/03/2017 (Restated)
£ £
Al 1 April 2,965,574 2,867,074
Applied Capital Granis 3.23 {419,793 {3.184,673
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year 1,012,361 [399.700
Direct Revenue Financing 311 1,226,424 (1,193,600,
Depreciation and Impairment adjusiment 3 4,881.82 3.994.90
Statutory Provision for financing Capital investment 3 {1.443,804) {1.371.124)
Net Revenue expenditure funded from copital under statute
31 200,775 -
Surplus/(Deficit] on the Provision of Services CIES 2.919.38) 4,092.741
Transters between Statutory and Other Reserves and the General Fund
{4.793,431}) [2.941.000)
Net movements on Pension Reserve 1,057,683 1,298,396
Disposal of Fixed Asseis/Copital Sales [24.675) {5.591)
Difference between finance and other costs and income colculated on an
aceounting baosis and finance costs calculoted in occordance with statutory
reguirements 3 77.407 131,484
Qther Movements 3 {111,937} {323.534)

7



23 Unusable Reserves
a Caopital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing diflerences arising from the different arangements for accounting for the
consumption of non-curent assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statulory

Provisions.

The Account is debiled with the cost of acquisition. conshuction or enhoncement as depreciation, impairment losses and
amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Stalement, with reconciling postings from the

Revaluation Raserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis.

The Account contains accurmulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recognised on donated assets thot

have yet 1o be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluaiion gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment betore | April 2008. the date that
the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

31/03/2014

Capltal Adjustment Account 131/03/2017 (Restated}

£ £
At 1 Apnl 90,29%.043 84,984,728
Applied Capital Grants & Donated Assets 3 419,793 3,184,673
Unapplied Capital Grants fransfemed 1o CAA in yeor 22 265,776 1.018.865
Direct Revenue Financing 31 1,226,424 1,193,600
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 10 {4.881,821}) {3.994,201)
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 3 1,443,604 1.371.124
Derecognition of Finance Lease 3.1 (200,77 5) -
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Copital Sales 3. 10 {15,320) {35.834)
Capital Receipls used to finance capital expenditure 311 o 8.000
Other Movements [890.332) 988,492
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA o finance
capital expenditure 1) 234,524 1,580,294

TT87.903114]

T790,299.0437

At 31'March
b Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account,



c Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant ond
Equipment and Intangible Assels. The reserve is reduced when assels with accumulated gains are

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciction, or
- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 Aprii 2008, the date the reserve wos created. Accumulated
gains arising before that date ore conselidated inta the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account,

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation [upwards or downwards) of individual assets. All
such revaluations (exciuding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/[Deficit} on the Provision of Services in the)
are mirrored in Other Comprehensive income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of this account that it never
becomes negative. If an asset was held at curent valve when derecognised. the balance held on the Revaluation Reserve is
written off to the Copital Adjustment Account.

Revaluation Reserve 31/03/2017 31/03/2014
(Resiated)
£ £
At 1 April 21,276,080 17,192,334
Revaluation & Imparment 10 1.903.610 5,072,239
Other Movements-Impairment Adjustments 258,951 -
Other Movements 890,332 {988,493}
O 8 6. 080
d Avagilable for Sale Financlal Instruments Reserve
The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account.
e Pension Reserve
0 0 0 0 0 D14
£ £
At 1 April {13,970,000] {17.552,950
|Net Movements on Pension Reserve 317 {1,057,683 {1,298,396
Revaoluation & Impagirment 19 {10,086,317 4,881,344
At 31 March (25,114,000}~ {13,970,000)
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f Defeired Capfial Recelpts Account

The Defered Capilal Receipts Account records capital advances receivob'e where an amount equai to the advance is
included as a defered capital receipt. These amounts are written down each year by the amount of capital debt repaid to the
Council in that year.

apital Receipts Deferred A O ClE 0 0 0 Gl

£ £
Al April 517,803 545,557
Other Movements [26,342) [27.754)

At 31 March™ 0 i Lol P [T 4914517777 517,803

g Accumvuloted Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the diiferences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund balance from
accruing for compensataed absences earned but not taken in the year e g, slaff annual leave entitlement caried forward at
the end of the financial year. Stotutory arangements are expected o require that the impact on the General Fund is

neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account

Accumulated Absences Account 31/0372017 31/03/20146
£ £

Al 1 April {685.084) {553,400)

Difference between finance and other cosls and income calculated on an

accounting basis and finance cosis calculated in accordance with statulory

requirements {77.407) {131,684)

A3V MarchiT T

h PFrovisions Discount Rate Reserve

(762,491)7

7({685,084)

The Provisions Discount Rate Reserve covers the arangement. put in place by the Depariment under its amendment {0 the
2012/13 accounts direction {see DOE circular 28/2013), to allow for mitigation of the costs not allowed for by Councils who had
adopted the HM Treasury Centrol Government discount rate for long-term provisions such as Londfiil costs.

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve . 31/03/2017 _ 31/03/2016
£ £

At ) April {63.548) {414,838)

Difference between finance and other costs and income coalculoted on an

accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory

requirements 138.279 351,288

At 31'March

74,7317 77 (63,548)]
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Agency Services

Fermanagh and Omagh District Council provides a Regional Praperty Certificale service on behalf of all 11 Councils following
the transier of this service 1o the Council from the Department for Communities (previously Department of the Environment ) on
1 April 2018, The cost of providing this service in 16-17 was £343k. income received during the year on behalf of the 11 Councils
amounted fo £1,355k. Amountis due o olher Councils at 31 March 2017 in respect of the Regional Property Certificates is £621k
ond included within Nole 16. Transactions relating to this service are not included within the financial statements.

Investment in Joint Operations

Tullyvar Joint Commuttee is a landfill site jointly owned and managed by Mid Ulster District Council and Fermonagh and Omagh
District Council on an equal ownership share basis. To ensure compliance with accounting standard IFRS 11 loint Amangements
the Council's share of Tullyvar income and expenditure is included within Environmentai Services reporting ling in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account and the Councii's rights o assets and cbligotions for liabilities are included in
the relevant reporting fines on the Balance Sheet. The comparative year figures have been restated. There is no impact on the
General Fund balance or the Counci's net worlh as o result of this restatement.

The financial provision for landfili capping and cliercare costs was reviewed in the year and discounted in accordance with 1AS
37. This resulled in a total discounted provision of £2,226,802 (2015/16 £1,917.309). Also, in accordance with IAS 37, the provision is
hased on the percentage utilisation of the site which has changed from 92.4% in the previous year to §2.1% currently ond
colculgted to be £1.381.874 [2015/16 £1,771.593). This is to bring the assumptions into line with the curent management position
that the site 15 to be "mothballed” for a number of years with the potential re-opening to fill cell 4. The Northern lreland
Environment Agency have reviewed Tullyvar's financial provision for landfill capping and oftercare costs in line with its paper
"Financial Provision lor waste management activifies in NI" and have confirmed they are comforiable with the cumrent provision.

Golder Associates previously reviewed the site gas generation potential ond modelled the income projection. Their model hos
been reviewed by monagement to reflect more recent actual gas generation ond income figures. The future projected
discounted gas income is £1,233,4854 over the next 12 years {2015/16 £1,480.278).

The value of Fermanagh and Omagh's invesiment in Tullyvar is £2.854.514 {2015/16 £2.705.541) which represents half of Tullyvar's
net assels employed and is broken down as follows:

2016/17 2015/16

£ AT i £

Long term assels 2,580,833 2,B560.366
Current assels 1.835.399 1,346.835
Current liabilities {871,781} {615,843}
Long term liabilities [690.937) (885.797)
Nel Assets 2,854,514 2,705,541

The movemenl in Fermanagh and Omagh's investment in Tullyvar - increase of £148.973 (2015/16 decrease of £21,333) is

broken down as follows:

201617
£

2015/16

£

Sales 386,286 | 360972
Gos Income 24,959 [26.126)
Other 1,365 2,249
Total Income 412,610 337,095
Administration Costs 117.312 130.953
Operating Costs 180,712 353,935
Total cosis 298,024 484,888
Distribution of funds - -

Revaluation reserve movement 34,387 126.458
Net Movement 148,573 {21,335)

€1
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Related Party Transaclions

A Related Parly Transaction is a transier of resources or obligations between related parties. regardiess of whether a price is
charged. Related Parly Transaclion exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely because of its
economic dependence on the Councll or the Government of which it forms part. A related parly is one that has the abilty fo
conirol the other parly or exercise significant influence over the other party in moking financial and operating decisions. This
includes cases where the related party enlity and another entity are subject to common conirol but excludes providers of
finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings with the
Council. In addition where the relationship with the Council and the entity is solely thot of an Agency (see nole 23) these are not
deemed to be Related Party Tronsactions.

Transactions with related porties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial stalements are set out below. where o description of
the nature, the amount of the transaction and the amount of the outsianding balance is as follows. Note that related party
relationships where conira! exists should be disclosed imespective of whether there have been fransactions between the related
parties.

Fermanagh & Omagh District Council appoinied Counciliors to the boards and commitiees of 71 various bodies ranging from
local groups such os Fermanagh Enterprise Limited and Omagh independent Advice Services to national groups such as
Northern ireland Amenity Council and the Northern Ireland Local Government Association. During the year the Council had
financial transactions with 18 of these bodies.

Councillors have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. In the 2016/17 financial year ithe Council
commissoned £1,759.431 of works and services from companies in which Councillors have an interest. The Council entered into
these confracts in full compliance with the Council's standing orders and codes of conduct. included in this sum are the
fransactions with Tullyvar Landfill, Those payments over £1,000 ore detailed in table below,

Tullyvar Landfill disposal site is jointly owned by Fermangh & Omagh District Council and Mid Uister District Council. During the
year Fermanagh & Omagh Disirict Council poid £1.532.954 in disposal charges and landfill tax and confributions to
environmental bodies. A further £225.74% was autstanding at 31 March 2017 for disposal charges and landfill fax for the periods
February and March 2017.

In addition. Fermanagh & Omagh District Council poid the Education Autharity (Western Region) £25.376 for calering. bus hire,
printing. training and a refund of renlal income. The Education Authority (Western Region). in turn, poid Fermonagh & Omagh
District Council £127.823 for rent, commercial and frade waste charges. hire of the leisure centre facilifies and for costs in
relation to Omagh Youth Centre & Bawnacre,

The Council aiso paid grants of £600.712 1o o number of organisations in which Councillers and Council officers had an interest.
These grants were made wilh proper consideration of declaration of interests. Those payments over £1,000 are delailed in the
fable below,

Included in grants is £70,000 poid lo Fintona Regeneration initiative during 2016/17 from which Fermanagh and Omagh District
Council deducied £8.558 as repayment of a loon.

During 2016/17, Fermanagh & Omagh District Council had actual expenditure of £1,646,174 to other Councils with o further
£743,785 [see note 16) oulstanding af 31 March 2017, The Council received £388,954 from other Councils with a further £89.835
[see note 14b) outstanding at 31 March 2017. These amounts relate mainly to services provided.

Fermanagh & Omagh District Council also paid NILGOSC {Northermn Ireland Local Government Officers Superannuation
Commitiee) a tolal of £3,310,860 whereby a Direclor was ocfing as a member of the Management Committee, Those
payments over £1,000 are detailed in the lable below.
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Fermonagh & Omagh District Councit made the following payments to organisations that Councillors. Directors and Head of
Service were on the Manaogement Committee,

Organisation Total Paid 16/17 Services Grants

£ £ £
Cooneen/Coonian Community Dev Associalior 1,325 1,325
Culmore O'Kane Residents Associolion 2,354 2,354
Dromore Education & Communily Partnership 31.02% 31,029
Education Authorily - Wesiern region 25,376 25376
Erne & Melvin Enhancement Company 2.504 2,504
Fermanagh Citizens Advice Bureau 80,821 80621
Fermanagh Enterprise Lid 2.492 1,459 1,033
Fermanagh Lakeland Tourism 129,580 12115 117,464
Fermanogh Rural Community Iniliative 115972 115,972
Fintona Regeneration Initiative Lid 71,904 510 71,394
Good wilt Gifts support group Ederney 1.677 1.677
Hospital Rood Community Association 5394 5.394
ICBAN 10,000 10,000
Kesh Development Association 4076 4,076
Kirlish Ulster Scots Association 2,806 2.806
Lakelond Community Care 4,367 &0 4,307
Melvin Enterprises 2,600 2,600
Newtownbutler Together 1,962 1.942
NI Amenity Council 2,590 2,590
NILGA 58,249 58,249
NILGOSC 3,310,880 3.310.840
Northern Ireland Fire & Rescue Service 5270 5.270
Omagh Enterprise Co Lid 3.406 2,406 1.000
Omagh Independent Advice 99,150 99.150
Omagh Safer Streets 70,000 70.000
Robert Dickie & Sons Ltd 4,646 4,644
Royal British Legion Omagh 4,262 4,262
South West Age Parinership 8.801 8.801
South Wesi College 9.517 9.517
Strathroy Community Association 1,892 1,892
Trillick Arts & Cultural Sociely 2,615 2,615
Trillick Enterprise Leisure Lid 40,638 20 40,618
Tullyvar Landfill 1,532,956 1,532,956
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Prlor Yeor Re-statement

As per Note 25 Tullyvar Joint Committeg is a landfill site joinily owned and managed by the Council and Mid Ulster District
Council on an equal ownership shared bass. The Council's share of the Tullyvar Committee assets, liabilties, revenue and
expenses were previously accounted for as a Joint Venture. Foliowng changes in the CIPFA Code of Praclice as a resul! of
amendments to IFRS 11 loint Arangements the Joint Committee is now considered {o be a Joint Operation. Assuch the
Council as a joint operator has recognised its share of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in its financial statements.

Etfect on Comprehensive Income and Expendilture Stalement 2015-16

Service Expenditure Criginally Stated 2015/16 Restated 2015/14 Resiatement
Net Expenditure Net Expenditure

£ £ £
Leisure and Recreational Services 10,034,456 10,034,456 -
Environmental Services 14,250,747 14,398,540 {147,793}
Planning and Development Services 3.765.003 3.7465.003 -
Highways and Tronsport Services {435.,801) {435,801} -

JoRM and Corporate Management 2.653.804 2,653,804
Other Services 1.529,389 1,529,389 -
Cost of Services on Continuing Services 31,797,598 31,945,301 (147,793)
Cther Operating Expenditure {5.591}]- 5591 -
Financing and investment Income and
Expenditure 575,833 575,833 -
Share of Operating Results of
associctes and jont ventures 147,793 - 147,793
|Net Operating Expenditure 32,515,433 32,515,633 .
Taxation and non-specific grant income {36,608 .374) {36.608,374) 0
Surplus/(Deficit} on the provislon of Services 4,092,741 4,092,741 0
Effecl on Balance Sheet
Originally Stated 2015/16 Restated 2015/16 Restatement
Balance Balance

£ 3 3
Fixed Assets 121425615 123,571,841 2,146,226
Investments in Associotes and Joint Venlures 2.705.541 0 {2.705.541}
Long Term Debtors 565924 1,280,044 714,140
Long Term Assets 124,697,080 124,851,905 154,825
Short Term Debtors 4,829,158 5,296,592 467,434
Cash and Cash Equivalents 13,779,740 14,659,142 879,402
Current Assels 19,048,121 20,392,957 1,344,834
Short Term Creditors 5,920,101 6,535,965 615,864
Current Liobllies 7.403,570 8,019,434 615,844
Provisions 3.642.502 4,528 299 885.797
Long Term liabilites 28,814,301 29,700,138 BB5,797
Net Assets 107,525,290 107,525,290 0
Net Werth 107,525,290 107,525,290 0

Effect on 1 April 2015 Balance Sheet {Incorporating Fermanagh Bistrict Council, Omagh District Council and

Fermanagh and Omagh Shadow Councll)

Originally Stated 01.04.15 Restaled 01.04,15 Resfatement
Bolance Balance
£ £ £

Fized Assets 113,319,751 115,440,356 2,120,605
Investments in Associales and Joint Ventures 2,726,876 0 {2.726.878)
Lang Term Debtors 577.933 1,343,199 765,286
Long Term Assefs 116,624,560 114,783,555 158,995
Short Term Debtors 11,033,528 11,739,966 706,438
Cash ond Cash Equivalents B.269.119 9,309.874 1,040,757
Current Assels 19,817,165 21,564,360 1,747,195
Short Term Creditors 7.9467.925 8,486,849 718,744
Current Liabilities 9,421,414 10,140,158 718,744
Provisions 3,456,413 4,643,859 1,187,446
Long Term Llabilites 33,541,347 34,728,793 1,187,444
Net Assels 93,478,964 93,478,964 0
93,478,964 93,478,944 0
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Fermanagh and Omagh District Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Accounts Authorised for the Issue Certificate
Events after the Reporting Period

There were no events occurring after 31 March 2017 which require adjustment to the Council’s financial statements or additional disclosures.

Date of authorisation for issue
The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 28 September 2017,

. In the event of adjustments the disclosures that should be made.
Signed
) S———
CHi€f Financial Officer —_—

Date 28 September 2017







